CITY OF BURLINGTON

AGENDA

Administration Department

300 N. Pine Street, Burlington, WI, 53105
(262) 342-1161 - (262) 763-3474 fax
www.burlington-wi.gov

COMMON COUNCIL

Tuesday, August 1, 2017

To immediately follow the 6:30 p.m. Committee of the Whole meeting
Common Council Chambers, 224 East Jefferson Street

Mayor Jeannie Hefty

Susan Kott, Alderman, 1st District

Edward Johnson, Alderman, 1st District

Bob Grandi, Alderman, 2nd District

Ruth Dawidziak, Alderman, 2nd District

Tom Vos, Alderman, 3rd District

Jon Schultz, Council President, Alderman, 3rd District
Thomas Preusker, Alderman, 4th District

Todd Bauman, Alderman, 4th District

1. Roll Call
2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag
3. Citizen Comments
4, Chamber of Commerce Representative and Rescue Squad Representative
5. Approval of Minutes (J. Schultz)
A. Approval of the Common Council Minutes for July 18, 2017
6. Letters and Communications - There are none

7. Reports by Aldermanic Representatives and Department Heads



http://www.burlington-wi.gov

8. Reports 1-5

A. Plan Commission Meeting Minutes - June 13, 2017
Housing Authority Meeting Minutes - June 22, 2017
Burlington Public Library Meeting Minutes - June 27, 2017
Police & Fire Commission Meeting Minutes - July 5, 2017
Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes - July 18, 2017

9. Payment of Vouchers (7. Preusker)
A. Approval of Pre-paids and Vouchers as follows:
|Total Prepaid: |$ 39,822.76
|Total Vouchers: | $219,461.06
|Grand Total: |$259,283.82
10. Licenses and Permits (7. Bauman)
A. Consideration of approving the issuance of Operator's Licenses and Special Event Permit Applications.
11. Appointments and Nominations: There are none.
12. PUBLIC HEARINGS: There are none.
13. RESOLUTIONS: There are none.
14. ORDINANCES: There are none.
15. MOTIONS: There are none.
A. Motion 17-879 to consider approving the 2016 Annual Audit. (S. Kort)
16. ADJOURNMENT (E. Johnson)

Note: If you are disabled and have accessibility needs or need information interpreted for you, please call the City
Clerk’s Office at 262-342-1161 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.



COMMON COUNCIL REGULAR ITEM NUMBER 5A

DATE: August1, 2017
SUBJECT: Common Council Minutes for July 18, 2017
SUBMITTED BY: Diahnn Halbach, City Clerk

BACKGROUND/HISTORY:
The attached minutes are from the July 18, 2017 Common Council meeting.

BUDGET/FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the attached minutes from the July 18, 2017 Common Council meeting.

TIMING/IMPLEMENTATION:
This item is scheduled for final consideration at the August 1, 2017 Common Council meeting.

Attachments
CC Minutes




CITY OF BURLINGTON

Administration Department

300 N. Pine Street, Burlington, W1, 53105
(262) 342-1161 - (262) 763-3474 fax
www.burlington-wi.gov

CITY OF BURLINGTON
Minutes of the Common Council
Jeannie Hefty, Mayor
Diahnn C. Halbach, City Clerk
Tuesday, July 18, 2017

Mayor Jeannie Hefty

Susan Kott, Alderman, 1st District

Edward Johnson, Alderman, 1st District

Bob Grandi, Alderman, 2nd District

Ruth Dawidziak, Alderman, 2nd District

Tom Vos, Alderman, 3rd District

Jon Schultz, Council President, Alderman, 3rd District
Thomas Preusker, Alderman, 4th District

Todd Bauman, Alderman, 4th District

1. Call To Order - Roll Call
Mayor Jeannie Hefty called the meeting to order at 6:58 p.m. starting with roll call.

Present: Alderman Susan Kott; Alderman Ed Johnson; Alderman Bob Grandi; Alderman Ruth
Dawidziak; Alderman Tom Vos; Alderman Tom Preusker; Alderman Todd Bauman

Absent: Alderman Jon Schultz

Also Carina Walters, City Administrator; John Bjelajac, City Attorney; Steve DeQuaker, Finance
Present: Director; Megan Watkins, Director of Administrative Services; Mark Anderson, Police Chief;
Alan Babe, Fire Chief; Gregory Guidry, Building Inspector; Joe Davies, Library Director

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Citizen Comments
There were none.

4. Chamber of Commerce Representative and Rescue Squad Representative
Mayor Hefty reported on behalf of Chief Zwiebel for the Burlington Rescue Squad (BRS) and
offered a congratulations to him and his family for their new grand baby. Mayor Hefty stated BRS
received 36 calls beginning Wednesday July 12 until Saturday July 15. BRS was able to respond to
25, while other agencies responded to the remaining 11 during the flood disaster.

5. Approval of the Common Council Minutes for July 18, 2017
A motion was made by Alderman Vos with a second Alderman Dawidziak to approve the Common
Council Minutes for July 18, 2017. With all in favor, the motion carried.
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10.

11.

Letters and Communications
A motion to approve Letters and Communications was made by Alderman Preusker and seconded
by Alderman Johnson. With all in favor, the motion carried.

Correspondence from Alderman Jon Schultz stating his absence from the July 18, 2017 Committee
of the Whole and Common Council meeting.

Reports by Aldermanic Representatives and Department Heads

Alderman Dawidziak commended City staff and all personnel that participated during the flood
disaster. Dawidziak had experienced her own damage due to the flooding, and was truly humbled to
be a part of this team and feels that Burlington has set the bar for other communities in the way we
responded. Everyone unanimously agreed. Alderman Bauman added that the coming together of the
community was incredible and suggested the City have a celebration after everything calms down.
Mayor Hefty acknowledged City Administrator Walters for taking on the role of overseeing the
DPW during this time, in addition to everything else she had on her plate.

Reports 1-7
A motion to approve Reports 1-7 was made by Alderman Bauman and seconded by Alderman

Grandi. With all in favor, the motion carried.

Approval of Prepaids and Vouchers for July 18, 2017

A motion to approve Payments and Vouchers was made by Alderman Kott and seconded by
Alderman Dawidziak. Roll Call: Aye - Kott, Johnson, Grandi, Dawidziak, Vos, Preusker, Bauman.
Nay - None. The motion carried 7-0.

Licenses and Permits

Consideration of approving the issuance of a "Class B" Combination Reserve Liquor License to MK
Allen, Inc. (dba The Burly Duck) for property located at 488 Milwaukee Avenue, in the amount of
$12,500.

Mr. Allen gave a brief overview of his business plan and financial information for the Burly Duck.
Walters addressed the Council and stressed the importance of the issuance of this last liquor license.
Walters then reviewed the findings from the Racine County Economic Development Committee
(RCEDC) regarding Mr. Allen's business plan, which stated that certain information was missing,
therefore the RCEDC was unable to offer their opinion on the feasibility of this project

and recommended he submit the necessary information for further review. Mr. Allen stated that the
RCEDC was only given the Executive Summary and not the entire business plan, however he would
be happy to submit the information for a more thorough review.

A motion was made by Alderman Dawidziak with a second by Alderman Preusker to table this item
in order to allow Mr. Allen to submit additional information to the RCEDC for further review and
recommendation. With all in favor, the motion carried.

Consideration of approving the issuance of Operator's Licenses, a "Class A" Retail Liquor License,
and a Special Event Permit Application.

A motion was made by Alderman Johnson with a second by Alderman Kott to approve the licenses
and permits as presented. With all in favor, the motion carried.

Appointments and Nominations:
There were none




12.

13.

14.

15.

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

There were none.

RESOLUTIONS:

Resolution 4857(15) - to consider the award of the contract for the S. Pine Street Sanitary Sewer

project to The Wanasek Corporation for the not-to-exceed amount of $113,367.60.

A motion was made by Alderman Grandi, with a second by Alderman Dawidziak to approve
Resolution 4857(15).

Roll Call: Aye - Grandi, Dawidziak, Vos, Preusker, Bauman, Kott, Johnson. Nay - None. The
motion carried 7-0.

Resolution 4858(16) - to approve an Addendum to the to the Agreement for Construction

Management Services with Scherrer Construction for the Guaranteed Maximum Price of $4,628,879
for the Burlington Community Pool Project.

Attorney Bjelajac commented that the dollar amount was missing from within the body of the
written resolution, therefore required a motion to amend the resolution to include this information.

A motion was made by Alderman Dawidziak with a second by Alderman Kott to amend Resolution
4857(15) to include the Guaranteed Maximum Price of $4,628,879 within the body of the resolution.
Roll Call: Aye - Dawidziak, Vos, Preusker, Bauman, Kott, Johnson, Grandi. Nay - None. The
motion carried 7-0.

A motion was made by Alderman Preusker with a second by Alderman Vos to approve the amended
Resolution 4857(15). Roll Call: Aye - Preusker, Bauman, Kott, Johnson, Grandi, Dawidziak, Vos.

Nay - None. The motion carried 7-0.

Resolution 4859(17) — to adopt a Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Burlington

and Racine County to accept a conditional grant in the amount of two hundred thousand dollars
($200,000) from Racine County for the purchase of property at 587 E. State Street for use by the
Burlington Senior Center.

A motion was made by Alderman Preusker with a second by Alderman Johnson to approve
Resolution 4859(17). Roll Call: Aye - Preusker, Bauman, Kott, Johnson, Grandi, Dawidziak, Vos.
Nay - None. The motion carried 7-0.

Resolution 4860(18) - to consider approving an Extraterritorial Zoning (ETZ) Certified Survey Map
(CSM) for property located on Schaal Road in the Town of Burlington.

A motion was made by Alderman Bauman with a second by Alderman Grandi to approve
Resolution 4860(18). With all in favor, the motion carried.

ORDINANCES:
There were none.

MOTIONS:

A. Motion 17-878 - to consider approving a contract with John's Disposal for Disaster Relief Aid for
garbage, recycling and electronics.

A motion was made by Alderman Kott with a second by Alderman Dawidziak to approve Motion
17-878. Roll Call: Aye - Kott, Johnson, Grandi, Dawidziak, Vos, Preusker, Bauman. Nay - None.



16.

17.

18.

Note: If you are disabled and have accessibility needs or need information interpreted for you, please call the City

The motion carried, 7-0.

ADJOURN INTO CLOSED SESSION

Wis. Stats 19.85(e), Deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public properties, the investing of

public funds, or conducting other specified public business, whenever competitive or bargaining
reasons require a closed session.
- Regarding the Senior Center Agreement

Wis. Stats 19.85(g), Conferring with legal counsel for the governmental body who is rendering oral

or written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with respect to litigation in which it
is or is likely to become involved.
- Regarding mediation with Advanced Disposal

A motion was made by Alderman Johnson with a second by Alderman Dawidziak to adjourn into

Closed Session. Roll Call: Aye - Johnson, Grandi, Dawidziak, Vos, Preusker, Bauman, Kott. Nay -
None. The motion carried, 7-0. The meeting adjourned into Closed Session at 8:08 p.m.

RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION

A motion was made by Alderman Grandi with a second by Alderman Dawidziak to reconvene into
Open Session. With all in favor, the meeting reconvened into Open Session at 9:15 p.m.

ADJOURNMENT

A motion was made by Alderman Dawidziak with a second by Alderman Kott to adjourn the
meeting. With all in favor, the meeting adjourned at 9:15 p.m.

Meeting Minutes Respectfully Submitted by:
Diahnn C. Halbach

City Clerk

City of Burlington

Clerk’s Office at 262-342-1161 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.



COMMON COUNCIL REGULAR

ITEM NUMBER 8A

DATE: August1, 2017
SUBJECT: Reports 1-5
SUBMITTED BY: Diahnn Halbach, City Clerk

BACKGROUND/HISTORY:
Attached please find the following reports:

Plan Commission Meeting Minutes - June 13, 2017
Housing Authority Meeting Minutes - June 22, 2017
Burlington Public Library Meeting Minutes - June 27, 2017
Police & Fire Commission Meeting Minutes - July 5, 2017
Committee of the Whole Meeting Minutes - July 18, 2017

BUDGET/FISCAL IMPACT:
N/A

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that Council approve the submitted reports.

TIMING/IMPLEMENTATION:
This item is scheduled for consideration at the August 1, 2017 Common Council meeting.

Attachments
PC Minutes
Housing Authority Meeting Minutes
Library Meeting Minutes
PFC Meeting Minutes




% CITY OF BURLINGTON

Administration Department
300 N. Pine Street, Burlington, WI, 53105
(262) 342-1161 — (262) 763-3474 fax
www.burlington-wi.gov

Est, 1835

Minutes
City of Burlington Plan Commission
June 13, 2017, 6:30 p.m.

Mayor Jeannie Hefty called the Plan Commission meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. Roll call: Alderman
Tom Vos and Bob Grandi; Commissioners Chad Redman and Art Gardner were present.
Commissioners Andy Tully and John Ekes were excused.

Mayor Jeannie Hefty welcomed Art Gardner to his first meeting as a new Plan Commission member.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Alderman Grandi moved, and Commissioner Redman seconded to approve the minutes of May 9,
2017. All were in favor and the motion carried.

LETTERS & COMMUNICATIONS
Alderman Vos moved, and Alderman Grandi seconded to accept the resignation letter from Chris
Reesman. All were in favor and the motion carried.

CITIZEN COMMENTS
None

PUBLIC HEARINGS
None

OLD BUSINESS

A. Jeff Way is to give an update regarding the violations of the original Conditional Use Permit
for property located at 1157 Milwaukee Avenue.

e Mayor Hefty opened this item for explanation.

o City Administrator Carina Walters explained Jeff Way’s extension to be in compliant with the
Conditional Use expires June 30, 2017. Jeff Way and his realtor were unavailable to attend
tonight’s meeting, but will attend the August 8, 2017 meeting. Ms. Walters stated when she
talked with the realtor earlier that day, he said there was prospective buyers for the property
but no one had purchased it as of yet.

e There were no further comments.

NEW BUSINESS

A. Consideration to approve a Site Plan application from Lance Bento for property located
at 700 S. Kane Street to expand the parking lot, subject to Graef’s June 5, 2017
memorandum to the Plan Commission.

e Mayor Hefty opened this item for discussion.
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e Gregory Guidry, Building Inspector, explained that We Energies is expanding the parking lot,
to meet ADA and size requirements, as well as resurface the asphalt for maintenance.
Commissioner Gardner asked if some greenspace will be removed and placed closer to the
road. Alderman Grandi responded that four trees are being removed in the buffer area. Mr.
Guidry stated greenspace is only recommended to them but not required. Lance Bento,
representative of We Energies, stated they will take the greenspace into consideration. Ms.
Walters questioned if there will be an overall landscape or vegetation incorporated into this
project. Mr. Bento replied the budget did not account for greenspace since it was not
originally stated, but there is usually a contingency in the bid. Ms. Walters stated since the bid
has not been completed, could there possibly be a section in the bid that is an alternate to
allow for the landscape. Mr. Bento replied yes, they can add a line in the bid. Alderman Vos
suggested that if the City’s ordinance does not state that landscape has to be increased if a
parking lot is expanded, maybe the City should consider amending the ordinance adding that
additional landscaping to be required. Commissioner Redman stated that in Graef’s report it
recommends that the curb and gutter requirements and minimum landscape surface ratio be
waived. Ms. Walters stated on the Lynch Display Van (LDV) recent project, the City waived
the requirement since no other properties in the industrial park, other than a portion of LDV,
has curb and gutter.

e There were no further comments.

Alderman Vos moved, and Commissioner Gardner seconded to approve a Site Plan to expand the
parking lot for 700 S. Kane Street.

All were in favor and the motion carried.

B. Consideration to approve a Site Plan from the City of Burlington for property located at
394 Amanda Street for the Burlington Community Pool Project, subject to Graef’s June 8,
2017 and Kapur & Associates’ May 30, 2017 memorandums to the Plan Commission.

e Mayor Hefty opened this item for discussion.

e Ms. Walters explained that the City has been working on the Burlington Community Pool
Project for two years. There will be a complete rebuild of the pool having a 6,000 square foot
increase, bringing it to a total of 12,500 square feet. The pool project is to improve the layout
of the pool and other activities; such as a tennis court and playground. Alderman Vos stated
the parking lot currently has 85 parking spaces instead of 157 parking spaces that Graef
recommends in their report. Alderman VVos commented that the entire site plan would have to
be redesigned to accommodate for the 157 parking spaces. Alderman Vos also stated the
parking lot is never full on a busy day the way it is. Commissioner Redman questioned if the
handicap parking is based on the 85 spaces or the 157 spaces. Ms. Walters replied they are
based on the 85 parking spaces. Commissioner Gardner questioned why there is only one
exit/entrance. Ms. Walters stated that the exit/entrance will be in a circular path. Ms. Walters
commented that if the parking lot had two exits/entrances it would cut into the parking spaces
and even the parking for the house across the street.

e There were no further comments.
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Alderman Grandi moved, and Alderman Vos seconded to approve a Site Plan for the Burlington
Community Pool Project.

All were in favor and the motion carried.

ADJOURNMENT

Commissioner Redman moved, and Commissioner Gardner seconded to adjourn the meeting at 6:55
p.m. All were in favor and the motion carried.

Recording Secretary
Kristine Anderson
Administrative Assistant

Page 3 of 3



Housing Authority of City of Burlington Wisconsin
Riverview Manor
June 22, 2017

The regular monthly meeting of the Housing Authority of City of Burlington Wisconsin
was held on Thursday, June 22, 2017 at 6:15 P.M. at Riverview Manor. The meeting was
called to order by Chairman Lapp.

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Chairman Lapp, Vice Chairman Heck, Secretary Smith,
Commissioner Petersen, Commissioner Merten and Manager Eileen Olson.

Minutes from the regular monthly meeting held May 18, 2017, were reviewed and
approved as written with a motion by Heck, seconded by Merten, and carried
unanimously.

FINANCIAL REPORT: Reserve Account balances as of May 31, 2017. (See statement
balance sheet).

OCCUPANCY REPORT: Manager Olson reported 57 on the waiting list for one
bedroom units and 10 for two bedroom units.

BUILDING AND MAINTENANCE: Paving and concrete work totaled $128,000.50 due to
cost overruns with the additional 782 cubic yards of gravel installed during the
undercutting of the base.

A barrel grill was donated to the residents by Vic Rubach.

COMMUNICATION: Copies of the monthly operating statements, bills and bank
statements were dispersed and reviewed by board members.

NEW BUSINESS: RVM will be hiring a part time employee for housekeeping as Victoria

Whitcomb is leaving her position of 8 hours per week.

Motion made and carried for Pat Lapp and Eileen Olson to attend the WI-CARH
Conference in Baraboo on November 2, 2017.

Motion made and carried to host the Burlington Chamber of Commerce Business After
Hours on September 14, 2017 in recognition of the 40™ anniversary of RVM.

A picnic for board members, employees and their spouses is being planned for August at
the Lapp residence.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: None



OTHER BUSINESS: There was a closed door meeting for board members to discuss (State
Statute 19.85) Item C to consider employment, promotion, compensation or performance
evaluation data of any public employee over which the governmental body has jurisdiction
or exercised responsibility. Compensation discussion was held on wages for the upcoming
fiscal year for proposed budget purposes.

ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business, motion to adjourn was made by
Petersen, seconded by Merten, and carried unanimously. Meeting adjourned at 7:45 P.M.
The next monthly meeting is tentatively scheduled for July 20, 2017 at 6:00 p.m.

Qo

/ John Smith, Secretary
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Minutes of the Burlington Public Library Board of Trustees

The Burlington Public Library Board of Trustees met on Tuesday, June 27, 2017 in the Burlington Public Library
Meeting Room. Present were Bridget Savaglia, Peter Smet, Megan Barker, Lori Haas, Tom Preusker, Jordan
Debbink. Excused were Ellen Blair, Jake Hanson, and Rosemarie Buse. Also present were Director, Joe Davies,
Administrative Assistant, Linda Berndt and Automation System Administrator, Tammy McCarthy.

Savaglia called the meeting to order at 4:30.
Savaglia asked if anyone had any conflict of interest and Haas responded that she had to leave at 5:00.

Minutes of the May 23, 2017 meeting were approved. Smet moved approval, and Preusker seconded. Motion
passed.

Preusker moved and Smet seconded the motion to approve the May 2017 General Fund Bills in the amount of
$9,709.81, Prepaids in the amount of $8,127.78, Reimbursements in the amount of $106.19, and General Deposits
in the amount of $1,306.10. Motion passed.

Smet moved and Haas seconded the motion to approve the June 2017 Trust Fund Bills and Reimbursements.
Motion passed.

Trustee Essentiais Training:
TE #24 — Library Friends and Library Foundations:
Discussion Question #1:

The Library Board discussed the Pros and Cons of Friends and Foundations Groups.
Pros:
e They have unlimited fundraising capabilities.
e Foundations can draw support from outside of the local community, including state and national grants
e Supplements the Library budget and provides additional opportunities
e Provides a constructive way for community supporters to get involved and heip the library
¢ Valuable opportunities to partner with other organizations like PTOs and other volunteer orgs.

e The municipal library should be funded by the municipalities it serves. Funds raised should be
supplemental, not used for operating expenses.

s Not a con per se, but Friends and Foundation are important stakeholders in the library who may need to be
cultivated to share the vision and goals of the library board and staff.

Discussion Question #2:



The Friends group raises money from the Booksale for the smaller needs and a Friends Foundation would help with
the larger fundraising and larger needs. Members of the Friends group were happy to be invited to the Board
Meeting.

Committee Reports: There were no reports at this time.

Federated Library Report: Davies mentioned that Lakeshores is looking for a new system replacement for a
language learning database. Savaglia had nothing to report at this time. There is a meeting soon.

Old Business:

Appointments to Committee: The handout shows which committee you have been appointed to by the President.
The committees run for one year. Preusker moved approval of the committees as presented, Haas seconded, and
Motion was approved. Davies commented that the Personnel and Finance committee will be meeting soon
regarding the budget.

Haas had to leave and was excused at 5:00.

Building Project Plans:

The question at this time is whether we want to relocate or renovate. Discussion ensued.

Who owns the Library? The City would purchase the land on behalf of the Library. The farther out of town the
cheaper the property. Then there are pros and cons. We would lose the students that walk to the Library. We are
in the center of the downtown. The structure costs are the same at either location, but parking is cheaper.,

Discussion: Estimated costs are $3 million for a renovation and $9 million for a new building.

Friends & Foundation needs to be established and able to raise money, then we can approach the City. If
Lakeshores Library System acquires PatronLink, that could greatly aid in this fundraising process.

The City has a strategic plan to develop the downtown area. Preusker said he would share it with the board
members.

Barker has information from a Trustee Training seminar that she participated in and she will pass on the
information on the view of the Library of the future.

It was discussed that the Library Board should meet specifically to discuss the building issue and it would need
100% involvement from all Library Board members.

- Smet had to leave for another meeting. He was excused at 5:35.

Davies can tell the City Administrator that the Library Board was given the opportunity to vote on whether to
pursue the acquisition of land but no motion was given.

The Library Board will be establishing a separate meeting for further discussion.
New Business:

Policy Review Schedule: Davies has made a monthly schedule to review a policy a month. This will help to keep our
policies up to date. Next month we will be looking at the Reference Service Policy.



Directors Report:

Report on attendance of Exhibits at the American Library Association conference:

Davies talked about the RFID Security System which stores all barcode information. It would replace the current
security tag in each book or material that the Library owns.

A patron would stack their books under the scanner and it would check out all books in that stack.

He looked into return/sorting bins. He was looking at a 2 or 3 bin system. A quick sort into Returns, Holds, and
Probiems. ‘

Other interesting ideas were:
e e-resources
e overdrive — new Libby app
Zinio — new RB-Digital app
CD & DVD repair machine
Pre-processing of new books
Outside bookdrop — Quote of $3,800.00 -- Maybe it just needs a new base?
Faxing Services — Scan-Print-Fax
Microfilm Digitization — auto scan and fixes images

Foundation Planning:

Davies met with Scott Carson and Pat Hoffman regarding getting a Foundation incorporated with the State.
We would need to get an attorney with Trust or Friends money - not general fund money.

Board members mentioned Peter Turk might be interested.

Debbink said that Parkside is the hub for Community Organizations and they would donate time. Debbink also
indicated that he likes to write grants and said that he would be happy to assist with such a project.

Membership Incentives for FOL:

Also Foundation incentives

Handout — Many good ideas.

Statistics: Circulation counts have increased for the month but all other numbers are down.

No publications to the Board.

Open access to WiFi —where are we in the process. Davies is working on it with Jim Novy from Lakeshores. We
have to get our internet filtering correctly calibrated before we make any changes.

Meeting was adjourned at 6:30 p.m. Preusker moved, and Debbink seconded. Motion passed.

Our next meeting will be on Tuesday, July 25" at 4:30 p.m. in the basement meeting room at the Burlington Public
Library.

Respectfully sub
Tom Preuskr
Aldermanic Representative

itted, —




CITY OF BURLINGTON
POLICE — FIRE COMMISSION

300 North Pine Street, Burlington, Wisconsin 53105
(262) 763-3717

MINUTES
City of Burlington Police and Fire Commission
City Hall
300 N. Pine Street, Burlington, Wisconsin
July 5, 2017
1. Call to Order:
Secretary Erickson called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.

2. Roll Cali:

Commissioners in attendance: Jeff Erickson, Kevin Morrow, and Peter Hintz, and Fire Chief
Alan Babe. Commissioner Joe Busch, and Police Chief Mark Anderson were excused.
Commissioner William Smitz was absent.

3. Public Comments:
None.

4. Approval of Minutes

The minutes of the June 20, 2017 meeting of the Police and Fire Commission were approved
Commissioner Hintz made the motion to approve with Commissioner Morrow seconding the
motion 3 ayes the motion carried.

5. Police Chief Business
None.
6. Fire Chief Business

A. The commission convened into closed session pursuant to section 19.85 (1) (c) Wisconsin
Statutes for considering employment, promotion, compensation or performance evaluation data
of any public employee over which the governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises
responsibility on a motion by Commissioner Morrow and a second by Commissioner Hintz all 3
ayes carried the motion at 5:31pm. Note: Commissioner Smitz walked into the meeting at
5:59pm.

B. The commission reconvened into open session on a motion by Commissioner Smitz
seconded by Commissioner Morrow all 3 ayes carried the motion at 6:19pm.

C. A motion was made to add Yuri Sosa to the Fire Department eligibility list by
Commissioner Smitz seconded by Commissioner Morrow all 3 ayes carried the motion.

7. Police and Fire Commission Business
None.

8. Adjourn
Motion by Commissioner Hintz to adjourn; motion seconded by Commissioner Smitz;
motion carried by 3 ayes at 6;21p.m.

Respectfully submitted,
Commissioner Erickson, Secretary



COMMON COUNCIL REGULAR ITEM NUMBER 9%9A

DATE: August1, 2017
SUBJECT: Prepaid and Vouchers
SUBMITTED BY: Steven DeQuaker, Finance Dir.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY:
Attached please find the Prepaid and Voucher list for bills accrued through August 1, 2017:

Total Prepaid: $ 39,822.76

Total Vouchers: $219,461.06

Grand Total: $259,283.82
BUDGET/FISCAL IMPACT:

5 Largest Disbursements on the Prepaid and Voucher List:
1. $37,280.50 Central Racine County Health Department - Semi-Annual Billing of the 2017 Budgetary
Contribution of the Central Racine County Health Department Operating Budget
2. $32,455.79 Ayres Associates Inc. - Burlington Community Pool Design
3. $26,719.00 Starnet Technologies - Burlington Well 8 SCADA Upgrade
4.%$14,284.07 Ascent Aviation Group, Inc. - Jet A Fuel
5.$13,063.31 Great Lakes TV Seal Inc. - 2017 Sanitary Sewer Inspection

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the Common Council accept and approve these Prepaid and Vouchers in the amount of
$259,283.82.

TIMING/IMPLEMENTATION:
This item is scheduled for consideration at the August 1, 2017 Common Council meeting.

Attachments
Prepaid 07-20-17
Vouchers 08-01-17




CITY OF BURLINGTON Payment Approval Report - by GL - For Board Meeting Page: 1
Report dates: 07/20/2017-07/20/2017 Jul 27,2017 12:31PM
GL Account and Title Vendor Name Description Invoice Number  Invoice Date Net Date Paid
Invoice Amount

100444411000

100-444411-000 COURT FINES & COSTS RACINE COUNTY TREASURER  Racine Co Jail Assessment 2017JUNE 07/11/2017 2,390.00 07/20/2017

100-444411-000 COURT FINES & COSTS RACINE COUNTY TREASURER  Racine Co Surcharge 2017JUNE 07/11/2017 2,297.80 07/20/2017

100-444411-000 COURT FINES & COSTS ST OF WISC CONTROLLER'SO ST OF WI CONTROLLER OFFICE JUNE 2017 JUNE 07/11/2017 9,611.27  07/20/2017
Total 100444411000: 14,299.07

100454591000

100-454591-000 PARK DEPT NODA, AUDREANA Park Reservation Refund 070817 07/19/2017 125.00 07/20/2017
Total 100454591000: 125.00

100515121142

100-515121-142 MUNI COURT - WITNESS FE  CALDWELL, DAVID D.CALDWELL INTERPRETING MUNI COURT 2017 FEB 07/12/2017 35.00 07/20/2017
Total 100515121142: 35.00

100515132225

100-515132-225 ADMIN - TELEPHONE AT & T LONG DISTANCE AT & T LONG DISTANCE ADMIN 829440291-06/17 07/04/2017 48 07/20/2017

100-515132-225 ADMIN - TELEPHONE AT&T 262 763-3747 163 6 (split) 26276334740717 07/04/2017 2438 07/20/2017
Total 100515132225: 24.86

100515132298

100-515132-298 ADMIN - CONTRACT SERVI  E-vergent.com, LLC BUS WIRELESS MONTHLY ACCT 1610 1610-85 07/07/2017 300.00 07/20/2017
Total 100515132298: 300.00

100515132570

100-515132-570 Echo Lake Produce Fire Expe BUBNER, TERRY Reimbursement - Richter's 071417 07/14/2017 124.81 07/20/2017

100-515132-570 Echo Lake Produce Fire Expe  ANDERSON, KRISTINE REIMBURSEMENT - RICHTER'S 071417 07/14/2017 4.07 07/20/2017
Total 100515132570: 128.88

100515141225

100-515141-225 FINANCE - TELEPHONE AT & T LONG DISTANCE AT & T LONG DISTANCE FINANCE 829440291-06/17 07/04/2017 .09 07/20/2017

100-515141-225 FINANCE - TELEPHONE AT&T 262 763-3747 163 6 (split) 26276334740717 07/04/2017 24.38  07/20/12017
Total 100515141225: 24.47

100515141298

100-515141-298 FINANCE - CONTRACT SER  TRANSCENDENT TECHNOLOGI  Annual Software Maintenance M755 11/25/2016 210.00 07/20/2017
Total 100515141298: 210.00

100525211225

100-525211-225 POLICE - TELEPHONE AT & T LONG DISTANCE AT & T LONG DISTANCE POLICE 829440291-06/17 07/04/2017 5.36 07/20/2017

100-525211-225 POLICE - TELEPHONE AT&T 262 763-3747 163 6 (split) 26276334740717 07/04/2017 121.91 07/20/2017
Total 100525211225: 127.27

100525211240

100-525211-240 POLICE - FUEL, OIL VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN  Voyager Acct. 869297630 (split) 869297630726 07/01/2017 1,866.17 07/20/2017
Total 100525211240: 1,866.17

100525220225

100-525220-225 FIRE - TELEPHONE AT & T LONG DISTANCE AT & T LONG DISTANCE FIRE 829440291-06/17 07/04/2017 4.23 07/20/2017

100-525220-225 FIRE - TELEPHONE AT&T 262 763-3747 163 6 (split) 26276334740717 07/04/2017 97.54  07/20/2017
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Total 100525220225: 101.77

100525220240

100-525220-240 FIRE - FUEL, OIL, LUBRICA ~ VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMSIN  Voyager Acct. 869297630 (split) 869297630726 07/01/2017 788.25 07/20/2017
Total 100525220240: 788.25

100525231372

100-525231-372 BLDG INSP - AUTO EXPENS VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN  Voyager Acct. 869297630 (split) 869297630726 07/01/2017 24.19  07/20/2017
Total 100525231372: 24.19

100535321225

100-535321-225 STREETS - TELEPHONE AT & T LONG DISTANCE AT & T LONG DISTANCE DPW 829440291-06/17 07/04/2017 .08 07/20/2017

100-535321-225 STREETS - TELEPHONE AT&T 262 763-3747 163 6 (split) 26276334740717 07/04/2017 48.76  07/20/2017
Total 100535321225: 48.84

100535321240

100-535321-240 STREETS - FUEL, OIL & LU  VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMSIN  Voyager Acct. 869297630 (split) 869297630726 07/01/2017 2,282.55 07/20/2017
Total 100535321240: 2,282.55

100555551220

100-555551-220 PARKS - UTILITIES WE ENERGIES 8893-353-410 8893353410JUN17  06/30/2017 62.91 07/20/2017
Total 100555551220: 62.91

100555551240

100-555551-240 PARKS - FUEL, OIL, LUBRIC VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN  Voyager Acct. 869297630 (split) 869297630726 07/01/2017 1,266.21 07/20/2017
Total 100555551240: 1,266.21

251555511327

251-555511-327 MATERIALS PUCCINI, JENNIFER Reimbursement 070617 07/06/2017 12.61 07/20/2017
Total 251555511327: 12.61

251555511345

251-555511-345 PROGRAMS PUCCINI, JENNIFER Reimbursement 070617 07/06/2017 60.24  07/20/2017

251-555511-345 PROGRAMS SCHMIDT, JANE Reimbursement - Library Supplies 062117 07/07/2017 66.90 07/20/2017
Total 251555511345: 127.14

621575740000

621-575740-000 EMPLOYEE REIMBURSEME VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMSIN  Voyager Acct. 869297630 (split) 869297630726 07/01/2017 73048 07/20/2017
Total 621575740000: 730.48

621575740220

621-575740-220 WWTP-ELECTRIC WE ENERGIES 6268-292-660 6268292660JUN17  07/02/2017 4531 07/20/2017

621-575740-220 WWTP-ELECTRIC WE ENERGIES 8635-875-051 8635875051JUN17  07/06/2017 50.54 07/20/2017
Total 621575740220: 95.85

621575740222

621-575740-222 GAS WE ENERGIES 0862-239-067 0862239067MAY17  06/26/2017 666.50 07/20/2017
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Total 621575740222: 666.50
622506220000
622-506220-000 POWER WE ENERGIES 0882-547-355 (split) 0882547355JUN17  06/26/2017 382.64 07/20/2017
Total 622506220000: 382.64
622506230000
622-506230-000 SUPPLIES WE ENERGIES 0882-547-355 (split) 0882547355JUN17  06/26/2017 11.87  07/20/2017
622-506230-000 SUPPLIES WE ENERGIES 1473-005-365 1473005365JUN17  06/29/2017 1043 07/20/2017
Total 622506230000: 2230
622509210000
622-509210-000 OFFICE SUPPLY TIME WARNER CABLE-MILW Time Warner Water Acct # 700401601 700401601 07/17 07/02/2017 79.99 07/20/2017
622-509210-000 OFFICE SUPPLY AT & T LONG DISTANCE AT & T LONG DISTANCE WATER 829440291-06/17 07/04/2017 .08 07/20/2017
622-509210-000 OFFICE SUPPLY AT&T 262 763-3747 163 6 (split) 26276334740717 07/04/2017 48.76  07/20/2017
Total 622509210000: 128.83
622509330000
622-509330-000 TRANSPORTATION-SUPPLI  VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS IN  Voyager Acct. 869297630 (split) 869297630726 07/01/2017 499.37  07/20/2017
Total 622509330000: 499.37
623575740200
623-575740-200 FUEL FOR RESALE ASCENT AVIATION GROUP, INC  JET A 452613 07/06/2017 14,284.07  07/20/2017
Total 623575740200: 14,284.07
623575740220
623-575740-220 ELECTRIC WE ENERGIES 3243-871-135 3243871135JUN17  07/11/2017 78.25 07/20/2017
623-575740-220 ELECTRIC WE ENERGIES 4066-688-457 4066688457JUN17  07/11/2017 10.40  07/20/2017
623-575740-220 ELECTRIC WE ENERGIES 4619-277-006 4619277006JUN17  07/11/2017 453.53  07/20/2017
623-575740-220 ELECTRIC WE ENERGIES 6069-094-440 6069094440JUN17  07/11/2017 260.46  07/20/2017
623-575740-220 ELECTRIC WE ENERGIES 6280-861-972 6280861792JUN17  07/12/2017 1854  07/20/2017
623-575740-220 ELECTRIC WE ENERGIES 6831-002-581 6831002581JUN17  07/11/2017 56.20 07/20/2017
623-575740-220 ELECTRIC WE ENERGIES 7460-654-921 7460654921JUN17  07/11/2017 52.43 07/20/2017
623-575740-220 ELECTRIC WE ENERGIES 8460-785-002 8460785002JUN17  07/11/2017 24.19 07/20/2017
Total 623575740220: 954.00
623575740225
623-575740-225 TELEPHONE AT & T LONG DISTANCE AT & T LONG DISTANCE AIRPORT 829440291-06/17 07/04/2017 .09 07/20/2017
623-575740-225 TELEPHONE AT&T 262 763-3747 163 6 (split) 26276334740717 07/04/2017 73.14  07/20/2017
Total 623575740225: 73.23
802525211310
802-525211-310 SUPPLIES FOR DOG/K-9 Uni WANGNOSS, BRYAN F Reimbursement 070717 07/07/2017 130.30  07/20/2017
Total 802525211310: 130.30
Grand Totals: 39,822.76
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100160000
100-160000 PREPAID EXPENDITURES DIGICORP 1 Year Contract-HP 319079 06/30/2017 4,218.93
100-160000 PREPAID EXPENDITURES DIGICORP 1 Year Renewal-Microsoft Office 365 319211 07/20/2017 1,485.00
Total 100160000: 5,703.93
100515111247
100-515111-247 Repairs & Maint Software SWAGIT PRODUCTIONS, LLC Video Streaming Services: June 2017 9168 06/30/2017 645.00
Total 100515111247: 645.00
100515111399
100-515111-399 CITY COUNCIL - PUBLICATI SOUTHERN LAKES NEWSPAPE CUP Hearing 286912 07/06/2017 57.70
Total 100515111399: 57.70
100515121294
100-515121-294 MUNI COURT - JAILCOSTS ~ RACINE CO SHERIFF DEPT. Ra Co Sheriff's board & lodging 2nd qtr 1468 07/26/2017 400.00
Total 100515121294: 400.00
100515121310
100-515121-310 MUNI COURT - OFFICE SUP  MINUTEMAN PRESS OF BURLI  Minuteman - Envelopes 31626 07/10/2017 251.97
100-515121-310 MUNI COURT - OFFICE SUP  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTA  STAPLES MUNICIPAL COURT SUPPLIES 8045290505 07/01/2017 121.18
Total 100515121310: 373.15
100515131800
100-515131-800 MAYOR-OUTLAY PSG Solutions LLC Joint Facility Job 10-242 01-2339 06/30/2017 593.75
Total 100515131800: 593.75
100515132310
100-515132-310 ADMIN - OFF SUPP-POSTA  ALSCO ALSCO DPW (split) Customer # 074780 IMIL1223093 07/12/2017 2.97
100-515132-310 ADMIN - OFF SUPP-POSTA  ALSCO ALSCO DPW (split) Customer # 074780 IMIL1225508 07/19/2017 297
100-515132-310 ADMIN - OFF SUPP-POSTA  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTA  STAPLES ADMIN OFFICE SUPPLIES 8045290505 07/01/2017 47.44
Total 100515132310: 53.38
100515132399
100-515132-399 ADMIN - SUNDRY EXPENSE RICHTER'S MARKETPLACE Richter's Marketplace - City Hall 07/11/17CH 07/11/2017 390
Total 100515132399: 3.90
100515132570
100-515132-570 Echo Lake Produce Fire Expe LINCOLN CONTRACTORS SUP  Flood - Rubber Discharge Hose 119054 07/26/2017 1,978.00
100-515132-570 Echo Lake Produce Fire Expe LINCOLN CONTRACTORS SUP  Flood - Rental Discharge Hose R99538 07/25/2017 470.88
100-515132-570 Echo Lake Produce Fire Expe MENARDS FLOOD SUPPLIES 38451 07/14/2017 50.36
100-515132-570 Echo Lake Produce Fire Expe MENARDS FLOOD SUPPLIES 38753 07/18/2017 4272
100-515132-570 Echo Lake Produce Fire Expe MENARDS FLOOD SUPPLIES 38851 07/19/2017 33.98
100-515132-570 Echo Lake Produce Fire Expe OLSEN SAFETY EQUIP. COR. FLOODING SUPPLIES 0344960-IN 07/17/2017 418.48
100-515132-570 Echo Lake Produce Fire Expe PATS SERVICES, INC Portable Toilet Rental-1901 S. Milw. Ave. A-145396 07/18/2017 200.00
100-515132-570 Echo Lake Produce Fire Expe REINEMANS, INC. FLOOD SUPPLIES 127403 07/13/2017 7150
100-515132-570 Echo Lake Produce Fire Expe REINEMANS, INC. FLOOD SUPPLIES 127471 07/14/2017 61.15
100-515132-570 Echo Lake Produce Fire Expe REINEMANS, INC. FLOOD SUPPLIES 127642 07/17/2017 8.07
100-515132-570 Echo Lake Produce Fire Expe REINEMANS, INC. FLOOD SUPPLIES 127652 07/17/2017 60.00
100-515132-570 Echo Lake Produce Fire Expe RICHTER'S MARKETPLACE SUPPLIES-FLOOD 7/14/2017FIRE 07/14/2017 17.98
100-515132-570 Echo Lake Produce Fire Expe WATERFORD OIL COMPANY, IN  FUEL-FLOOD 284721 07/14/2017 280.67
100-515132-570 Echo Lake Produce Fire Expe DONERITE JANITORIAL SERV |  Flood Cleanup - Weimhoof Jucker Restrooms 3046 07/26/2017 422.00
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100-515132-570 Echo Lake Produce Fire Expe DIGICORP FLOOD-PHONES 319162 07/17/2017 150.00
100-515132-570 Echo Lake Produce Fire Expe MINUTEMAN PRESS OF BURLI ~ FLOOD-PARK CLOSED SIGNS 31685 07/17/2017 75.00
100-515132-570 Echo Lake Produce Fire Expe MINUTEMAN PRESS OF BURLI ~ FLOOD-BIKE PATH CLOSED SIGNS 31696 07/18/2017 15.00
Total 100515132570: 4,355.79
100515161298
100-515161-298 ATTORNEY - CONTRACT S~ VONBRIESEN & ROPER, S.C. Von Briesen & Roper - Labor & Employment 11043 07/10/2017 2,269.31
Total 100515161298: 2,269.31
100525211225
100-525211-225 POLICE - TELEPHONE WI DEPT OF JUSTICE Customer Number MUNI000090 455TIME-00000018  07/10/2017 360.00
Total 100525211225: 360.00
100525211240
100-525211-240 POLICE - FUEL, OIL DOUG'S AUTO oil change 028189 07/11/2017 27.95
Total 100525211240: 27.95
100525211310
100-525211-310 POLICE - OFF SUPP-POSTA REINEMANS, INC. UPS Delivery 127182 07/10/2017 8.89
100-525211-310 POLICE - OFF SUPP-POSTA REINEMANS, INC. Supplies 127700 07/18/2017 124.84
100-525211-310 POLICE - OFF SUPP-POSTA  RICHTER'S MARKETPLACE Richter's Marketplace - Police Dept 06/29/17PD 06/29/2017 24.83
100-525211-310 POLICE - OFF SUPP-POSTA  RICHTER'S MARKETPLACE Richter's Marketplace - Police Dept 07/05/17PD 07/05/2017 5.85
100-525211-310 POLICE - OFF SUPP-POSTA  RICHTER'S MARKETPLACE Richter's Marketplace - Police Dept 07/07/17PD 07/07/2017 13.39
100-525211-310 POLICE - OFF SUPP-POSTA  RICHTER'S MARKETPLACE Richter's Marketplace - Police Dept 07/11/17PD 07/11/2017 21.88
100-525211-310 POLICE - OFF SUPP-POSTA STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTA  STAPLES POLICE DEPT 8045290505 07/01/2017 316.08
Total 100525211310: 515.76
100525211346
100-525211-346 POLICE - UNIFORM REPAIR  PROFESSIONAL ID CARDS, INC D Card/Badges Police Dept 10884 06/24/2017 41.20
Total 100525211346: 41.20
100525220211
100-525220-211 FIRE - PHYSICALS AURORA HEALTH CARE Acct #600003825 Spencer, Kevin C 1463907 07/02/2017 113.00
Total 100525220211: 113.00
100525220225
100-525220-225 FIRE - TELEPHONE DIGICORP Coral Flexset Handset Charcoal 319164 07/17/2017 71.05
Total 100525220225: 71.05
100525220242
100-525220-242 FIRE - REPAIR & MAINT VE  Emergency Apparatus Aerial 954 94437 07/14/2017 432.54
100-525220-242 FIRE - REPAIR & MAINT VE  Emergency Apparatus Aerial 954 - Spotlight Base Mount 94455 07/13/2017 82.99
100-525220-242 FIRE - REPAIR & MAINT VE ~ MENARDS Acct # 32120264 - Fire House Supplies (split) 37941 07/07/2017 41.07
100-525220-242 FIRE - REPAIR & MAINT VE  REINEMANS, INC. hardware 127929 07/20/2017 37
100-525220-242 FIRE - REPAIR & MAINT VE ~ BUMPER TO BUMPER BURLING  supplies 1-327518 07/08/2017 23.98
100-525220-242 FIRE - REPAIR & MAINT VE ~ BUMPER TO BUMPER BURLING headlamp 1-327812 07/17/2017 27.98
100-525220-242 FIRE - REPAIR & MAINT VE ~ BUMPER TO BUMPER BURLING headlamp 1-327813 07/17/2017 2.38-
Total 100525220242: 606.55
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100525220244
100-525220-244 FIRE - REPAIR MAINT EQUI  BENDLIN FIRE EQUIP. CO., INC.  Escape Work Belt 96115 07/07/2017 261.09
100-525220-244 FIRE - REPAIR MAINT EQUI  BENDLIN FIRE EQUIP. CO., INC.  Double A HUDS & Brkt 96116 07/07/2017 480.00
100-525220-244 FIRE - REPAIR MAINT EQUI  MENARDS Acct # 32120264 - Fire House Supplies (split) 37941 07/07/2017 297
100-525220-244 FIRE - REPAIR MAINT EQUI  REINEMANS, INC. Supplies 127296 07/11/2017 13.48
100-525220-244 FIRE - REPAIR MAINT EQUI  GROVE OUTDOOR POWER LLC ~ Rescue Saw 8478 07/05/2017 1,185.00
Total 100525220244: 1,942.54
100525220248
100-525220-248 FIRE - REPAIR MAINT BLDG MENARDS Acct # 32120264 - Fire House Supplies (split) 37941 07/07/2017 47.24
100-525220-248 FIRE - REPAIR MAINT BLDG MENARDS Acct # 32120264 - Fire House Supplies 38213 07/11/2017 26.37
100-525220-248 FIRE - REPAIR MAINT BLDG MENARDS Acct # 32120264 - Fire House Supplies 39041 07/21/2017 221.10
100-525220-248 FIRE - REPAIR MAINT BLDG MENARDS Acct # 32120264 - Fire House Supplies 39346 07/25/2017 5.02
100-525220-248 FIRE - REPAIR MAINT BLDG  REINEMANS, INC. AIRFILTER 127490 07/14/2017 1258
100-525220-248 FIRE - REPAIR MAINT BLDG  REINEMANS, INC. Supplies 127863 07/19/2017 13.49
100-525220-248 FIRE - REPAIR MAINT BLDG BUMPER TO BUMPER BURLING  supplies 1-327644 07/11/2017 71.94
Total 100525220248: 397.74
100525220298
100-525220-298 FIRE- CONTRACT SERVICE ~MALEK & ASSOCIATES CONSU  Plan Review for Big R Store-Sprinkler 5624 07/11/2017 470.00
100-525220-298 FIRE- CONTRACT SERVICE ~MALEK & ASSOCIATES CONSU  Plan Review for Lifebridge Church 5628 07/25/2017 515.00
Total 100525220298: 985.00
100525220310
100-525220-310 FIRE - OFFICE SUPPLIES BENDLIN FIRE EQUIP. CO., INC.  Shipping/Freight for Air Quality Test 96117 07/07/2017 1253
100-525220-310 FIRE - OFFICE SUPPLIES STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTA  STAPLES FIRE DEPT SUPPLIES 8045290505 07/01/2017 133.77
Total 100525220310: 146.30
100525220389
100-525220-389 FIRE - PROTECTIVE CLOTH EAGLE ENGRAVING EAGLE ENGRAVING FIRE DEPT SUPPLIES 2017-2348 07/10/2017 81.28
100-525220-389 FIRE - PROTECTIVE CLOTH PAUL CONWAY SHIELDS PAUL CONWAY FIRE 0406823-IN 07/06/2017 782.10
Total 100525220389: 863.38
100525231298
100-525231-298 BLDG INSP - CONTRACT MUNICIPAL SERVICES, LLC MUNICIPAL SERVICES INSPECTIONS 201737 07/01/2017 1,040.25
100-525231-298 BLDG INSP - CONTRACT Safebuilt, LLC Code Enforcement Services 0033450-IN 06/30/2017 302.50
Total 100525231298: 1,342.75
100535321159
100-535321-159 STREETS - CLOTHING ALL ~ ALSCO ALSCO DPW (split) Customer # 074780 IMIL1223093 07/12/2017 134.34
100-535321-159 STREETS - CLOTHING ALL  ALSCO ALSCO DPW (split) Customer # 074780 IMIL1225508 07/19/2017 64.67
Total 100535321159: 199.01
100535321225
100-535321-225 STREETS - TELEPHONE DIGICORP Digicorp - Voice Labor (split) 319163 07/17/2017 180.00
Total 100535321225: 180.00
100535321240
100-535321-240 STREETS - FUEL, OIL & LU  JERRY WILLKOMM INC. Willkomm Inc - DPW supplies 198133 06/27/2017 2,010.25
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Total 100535321240: 2,010.25
100535321242
100-535321-242 STREETS - REP MAINT VE JX ENTERPRISES INC JX Peterbilt - Parts Unit 517 2-271870091 07/06/2017 8,753.30
Total 100535321242: 8,753.30
100535321248
100-535321-248 STREETS REP & MAINTBL ~ ALSCO ALSCO DPW (split) Customer # 074781 IMIL1223094 07/12/2017 12.05
Total 100535321248: 12.05
100535321298
100-535321-298 STREETS - CONTRACT SER  JX ENTERPRISES INC JX Peterbilt - Parts Unit 517 2-272020050 07/21/2017 1,948.35
100-535321-298 STREETS - CONTRACT SER  TAPCO TAPCO DPW SIGNS 1570928 07/19/2017 95.11
100-535321-298 STREETS - CONTRACT SER  WANASEK CORPORATION Milw Ave Concrete Patch 17-504-01 07/20/2017 8,900.00
100-535321-298 STREETS - CONTRACT SER  WANASEK CORPORATION Truck Sweeper 7404 07/20/2017 2,816.63
100-535321-298 STREETS - CONTRACT SER  DONERITE JANITORIAL SERV |  DoneRite Janitorial Cleaning for DPW (split) 3038 07/20/2017 408.00
Total 100535321298: 14,168.09
100535321310
100-535321-310 STREETS - OFF SUPP/POS ~ STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTA  STAPLES STREET OFFICE SUPPLIES 8045290505 07/01/2017 129.99
Total 100535321310: 129.99
100535321350
100-535321-350 STREETS - REP MAINT SUP  HUMPHREY SERVICE & PARTS, filter 1149326 07/10/2017 13.60
100-535321-350 STREETS - REP MAINT SUP  HUMPHREY SERVICE & PARTS, filter 1149499 07/11/2017 5.94
100-535321-350 STREETS - REP MAINT SUP  HUMPHREY SERVICE & PARTS, filter 1149594 07/12/2017 13.60
100-535321-350 STREETS - REP MAINT SUP  KIMBALL MIDWEST KIMBAL MIDWEST DPW 5727800 07/12/2017 552.91
100-535321-350 STREETS - REP MAINT SUP  LYNCH TRUCK CENTER Unit 51 parts 2019011 07/05/2017 152.38
100-535321-350 STREETS - REP MAINT SUP  MOTOR PARTS COMPANY, LLC MOTOR PARTS DPW UNIT 510 292362 07/14/2017 114.00
100-535321-350 STREETS - REP MAINT SUP  JX ENTERPRISES INC JX Peterbilt - Parts Unit 519 2-271730010 06/22/2017 851.30
100-535321-350 STREETS - REP MAINT SUP  REINEMANS, INC. Supplies 127687 07/18/2017 25.19
100-535321-350 STREETS - REP MAINT SUP  THOMAS TOOL SALES Snap-on DPW tools 07111777015 07/11/2017 89.75
100-535321-350 STREETS - REP MAINT SUP  CUSTOM TRUCK & EQUIPMENT  DPW-Windshield Washer Fluid 10152916 07/19/2017 55.00
Total 100535321350: 1,873.67
100535321351
100-535321-351 STREETS - MAINT CURB,G  ASPHALT CONTRACTORS, INC  Asphalt Contractors - E-1 9.5mm 217214 07/07/2017 161.83
100-535321-351 STREETS - MAINT CURB,G  MENARDS Menards Acct 32120266 38131 07/10/2017 16.32
100-535321-351 STREETS - MAINT CURB,G  TAPCO TAPCO DPW SIGNS 50548351 07/05/2017 63.93
Total 100535321351: 242.08
100545411291
100-545411-291 HEALTH OFFICER-CONTRA  CENTRAL RACINE COUNTY HE  Semi-Annual Billing Health Dept Operating 20170701 07/14/2017 37,280.50
Total 100545411291: 37,280.50
100555532350
100-555532-350 POOL CGC,INC. Project No. CM16063 Devor Park - Pool Expansion 47251 07/03/2017 21511
Total 100555532350: 21511
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100555551159
100-555551-159 PARKS - CLOTHING ALSCO ALSCO DPW (split) Customer # 074780 IMIL1223093 07/12/2017 18.81
100-555551-159 PARKS - CLOTHING ALSCO ALSCO DPW (split) Customer # 074780 IMIL1225508 07/19/2017 18.81
Total 100555551159: 37.62
100555551225
100-555551-225 PARKS - TELEPHONE DIGICORP Digicorp - Voice Labor (split) 319163 07/17/2017 180.00
Total 100555551225: 180.00
100555551248
100-555551-248 PARKS - REPAIR MAINT BL ~ ALSCO ALSCO DPW (split) Customer # 074781 IMIL1223094 07/12/2017 6.03
Total 100555551248: 6.03
100555551298
100-555551-298 PARKS - OUTSIDE SERVICE GERBER LEISURE PRODUCTS,  cables & hardware for suspension bridge 4193 07/12/2017 657.00
100-555551-298 PARKS - OUTSIDE SERVICE = PATS SERVICES, INC PATS SANITARY RENTAL RIVERSIDE PARK A-144353 07/01/2017 180.00
100-555551-298 PARKS - OUTSIDE SERVICE PATS SERVICES, INC PATS SANITARY RENTAL BUSHNELL PARK A-145028 05/26/2017 90.00
100-555551-298 PARKS - OUTSIDE SERVICE PATS SERVICES, INC PATS SANITARY COMPOST SITE A-145208 05/24/2017 90.00
100-555551-298 PARKS - OUTSIDE SERVICE PATS SERVICES, INC PATS SANITARY RENTAL DEVOR PARK A-145330 07/17/2017 90.00
100-555551-298 PARKS - OUTSIDE SERVICE PATS SERVICES, INC CITY OF BURLINGTON DOG PARK A-145631 05/26/2017 80.00
100-555551-298 PARKS - OUTSIDE SERVICE SOUTHERN LAKES NEWSPAPE  Part Time Park Attendants 284343 06/07/2017 828.00
100-555551-298 PARKS - OUTSIDE SERVICE SOUTHERN LAKES NEWSPAPE  Part Time Park Attendants 286300 06/28/2017 414.00
100-555551-298 PARKS - OUTSIDE SERVICE BREEZY HILL NURSERY INC. BREEZY HILL NURSERY 1-206584 07/10/2017 45.00
100-555551-298 PARKS - OUTSIDE SERVICE DONERITE JANITORIAL SERV |  DoneRite Janitorial Cleaning for DPW (split) 3038 07/20/12017 204.00
Total 100555551298: 2,678.00
100555551350
100-555551-350 PARKS - REPAIR/IMTCE SUP  RUNDLE-SPENCE PARKS SUPPLIES-ECHO PARK $2582967.001 06/29/2017 430.69
100-555551-350 PARKS - REPAIRIMTCE SUP  GRAINGER DPW Supplies-Echo Park 9490220945 07/03/2017 149.75
100-555551-350 PARKS - REPAIRIMTCE SUP  MENARDS Menards Acct 32120266 38131 07/10/2017 5.99
100-555551-350 PARKS - REPAIRIMTCE SUP  REINDERS INC REINDERS PARKS 1695467-00 07/10/2017 358.89
100-555551-350 PARKS - REPAIRIMTCE SUP  REINEMANS, INC. Supplies 127015 07/07/2017 172
100-555551-350 PARKS - REPAIR/IMTCE SUP  BUMPER TO BUMPER BURLING  Vehicle Maintenance Supplies 1-326393 06/15/2017 8.40
100-555551-350 PARKS - REPAIR/IMTCE SUP  BUMPER TO BUMPER BURLING  supplies 1-326667 06/20/2017 9.65
100-555551-350 PARKS - REPAIRIMTCE SUP  CUSTOM TRUCK & EQUIPMENT  DPW-Windshield Washer Fluid 10152916 07/19/2017 55.00
Total 100555551350: 1,026.09
100565639399
100-565639-399 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ~ RACINE CO ECONOMIC DEV.C RCEDC 3RD QUARTER CONTRACT 3RD QTR 17 07/19/2017 10,600.00
Total 100565639399: 10,600.00
100575710297
100-575710-297 GARBAGE- CONTRACT SVC JOHNS DISPOSAL SERVICE IN  Riverview Manor (split) 126940 06/30/12017 108.00
Total 100575710297: 108.00
100575710298
100-575710-298 GARBAGE - CONTRACT SV JOHNS DISPOSAL SERVICE IN  Riverview Manor (split) 126940 06/30/12017 371.00
Total 100575710298: 371.00
251555511242
251-555511-242 REPAIR, MAINTENANCE EQ GORDON FLESCH COMPANY, |  staff copier quarterly maintenance fee 11953169 07/25/2017 798.95
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Total 251555511242: 798.95
251555511247
251-555511-247 REPAIR,MAINTENANCE BUI  REINEMANS, INC. Shelving Project Supplies 126809 07/25/2017 14.09
251-555511-247 REPAIR,MAINTENANCE BUI  REINEMANS, INC. bldg supplies & repairs 127010 07/25/2017 15.25
251-555511-247 REPAIR,MAINTENANCE BUI VORPAGEL SERVICE INC. Library-RESTROOM EXHAUST FAN REP 41180VSI 07/25/2017 523.35
Total 251555511247: 552.69
251555511310
251-555511-310 OFFICE SUPPLIES, POSTA  RICHTER'S MARKETPLACE Richter's Marketplace - Library 062717 07/25/2017 33.90
251-555511-310 OFFICE SUPPLIES, POSTA  AMAZON.COM/GE MONEY SPINE LABLES 0717AMAZ2 07/25/2017 47.99
251-555511-310 OFFICE SUPPLIES, POSTA  TECH SOUP GLOBAL 75 USB JUMP DRIVES 0717TSG 07/25/2017 84.00
Total 251555511310: 165.89
251555511312
251-555511-312 COMPUTER SUPPLIES LAKESHORE LIBRARY SYSTEM  Tech SERVICES/MILEAGE FEE 1812LLS2 07/25/2017 1,120.31
Total 251555511312: 1,120.31
251555511318
251-555511-318 AUTOMATION LAKESHORE LIBRARY SYSTEM  NEW SERVER PURCHASE 1812LLS1 07/25/2017 2,480.00
251-555511-318 AUTOMATION AMAZON.COM/GE MONEY USB Cable & HARD DRIVE 0717AMAZ3 07/25/2017 56.99
Total 251555511318: 2,536.99
251555511327
251-555511-327 MATERIALS BAKER & TAYLOR BAKER & TAYLOR LIBRARY MATERIALS 2032997735 07/25/2017 947.70
251-555511-327 MATERIALS BAKER & TAYLOR Childrens Materials 2033014840 07/25/2017 801.86
251-555511-327 MATERIALS BAKER & TAYLOR CONT. SERV  reference materials 5014616702 07/25/2017 14153
251-555511-327 MATERIALS BAKER & TAYLOR CONT. SERV  LIBRARY MATERIALS 5014638013 07/25/2017 26.48
251-555511-327 MATERIALS CENTER POINT LARGE PRINT  Large Print Material 1486349 07/25/2017 271.44
251-555511-327 MATERIALS SOUTHERN LAKES NEWSPAPE  Liibrary-2 newspaper renewal 2 yrs 0717SLM 07/25/2017 130.00
251-555511-327 MATERIALS MIDWEST TAPE, LLC playways 95202874 07/25/2017 75.99
251-555511-327 MATERIALS MIDWEST TAPE, LLC DVD's 95202875 07/25/2017 308.83
251-555511-327 MATERIALS MIDWEST TAPE, LLC audiobooks 95218704 07/25/2017 127.98
251-555511-327 MATERIALS MIDWEST TAPE, LLC DVD's 95232791 07/25/2017 605.77
251-555511-327 MATERIALS TASTE OF HOME TASTE OF HOME COOKBOOKS 0717TOH 07/25/2017 21.00
Total 251555511327: 3,458.58
251555511330
251-555511-330 INSERVICE TRAINING/TRAV  WAUKESHA COUNTY TREASUR ALA BUS TRIP 0717WCT 07/25/2017 20.00
Total 251555511330: 20.00
251555511345
251-555511-345 PROGRAMS AMAZON.COM/GE MONEY Childrens Program Supplies 0717AMAZ1 07/25/2017 34.74
Total 251555511345: 34.74
453565616823
453-565616-823 2017 Pool Construction Proje  AYRES ASSOCIATES Project 27-0151.00 Community Pool Design 169618 07/06/2017 32,455.79
Total 453565616823: 32,455.79
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501514900000
501-514900-000 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE ~ DIRECTPATH Monthly fee for Advocacy Serv Aug AT36850 07/27/2017 171.00
Total 501514900000: 171.00
621575740159
621-575740-159 CLOTHING ALLOWANCE ALSCO ALSCO WWTP (split) Cust # 012230 IMIL1220672 07/05/2017 76.95
621-575740-159 CLOTHING ALLOWANCE ALSCO ALSCO WWTP (split) Cust # 012230 IMIL1223096 07/12/2017 85.30
621-575740-159 CLOTHING ALLOWANCE ALSCO ALSCO WWTP (split) Cust # 012230 IMIL1225510 07/19/2017 76.95
621-575740-159 CLOTHING ALLOWANCE ALSCO ALSCO WWTP (split) Cust # 012230 IMIL1227915 07/26/2017 76.95
Total 621575740159: 316.15
621575740242
621-575740-242 REPAIR,MAINTENANCE VE  IBD, LLC BATTERY FOR TRUCK 78 110149669 07/12/2017 96.95
Total 621575740242: 96.95
621575740244
621-575740-244 REPAIRS,MAINT EQUIPMEN A TO Z REFRIGERATION Repairs 93609 07/01/2017 2,264.38
621-575740-244 REPAIRS,MAINT EQUIPMEN  ALSCO ALSCO WWTP (split) Cust # 012230 IMIL1220672 07/05/2017 1491
621-575740-244 REPAIRS,MAINT EQUIPMEN  ALSCO ALSCO WWTP Cust # 012231 (split) IMIL1220673 07/05/2017 130.61
621-575740-244 REPAIRS,MAINT EQUIPMEN  ALSCO ALSCO WWTP (split) Cust # 012230 IMIL1223096 07/12/2017 1491
621-575740-244 REPAIRS,MAINT EQUIPMEN ~ ALSCO ALSCO WWTP (split) Cust # 012230 IMIL1225510 07/19/2017 1491
621-575740-244 REPAIRS,MAINT EQUIPMEN  ALSCO ALSCO WWTP Cust # 012231 (split) IMIL1225511 07/19/2017 130.61
621-575740-244 REPAIRS,MAINT EQUIPMEN  ALSCO ALSCO WWTP (split) Cust # 012230 IMIL1227915 07/26/2017 1491
621-575740-244 REPAIRS,MAINT EQUIPMEN MENARDS Menards Acct 32120265 38125 07/10/2017 50.94
621-575740-244 REPAIRS,MAINT EQUIPMEN WELDERS SUPPLY COMPANY  WELDERS SUPPLY- WWTP 460539 06/30/2017 21.45
621-575740-244 REPAIRS,MAINT EQUIPMEN WATERFORD OIL COMPANY, IN. WATERFORD OIL WWTP 284586 07/06/2017 26.50
621-575740-244 REPAIRS,MAINT EQUIPMEN DONERITE JANITORIAL SERVI WWTP July Cleaning 3039 07/20/2017 840.00
621-575740-244 REPAIRS,MAINT EQUIPMEN  FISH WINDOW CLEANING WWTP Window Cleaning 3063-22478 07/20/2017 209.00
Total 621575740244: 3,733.13
621575740248
621-575740-248 PLANT OPERATION TELEDYNE INSTRUMENTS, INC  DISCHARGE TUBING 5020188235 06/23/2017 342.00
Total 621575740248: 342.00
621575740249
621-575740-249 LABORATORY ALSCO ALSCO WWTP (split) Cust # 012230 IMIL1220672 07/05/2017 5.10
621-575740-249 LABORATORY ALSCO ALSCO WWTP Cust # 012231 (split) IMIL1220673 07/05/2017 90.89
621-575740-249 LABORATORY ALSCO ALSCO WWTP (split) Cust # 012230 IMIL1223096 07/12/2017 5.10
621-575740-249 LABORATORY ALSCO ALSCO WWTP (split) Cust # 012230 IMIL1225510 07/19/2017 5.10
621-575740-249 LABORATORY ALSCO ALSCO WWTP Cust # 012231 (split) IMIL1225511 07/19/2017 90.89
621-575740-249 LABORATORY ALSCO ALSCO WWTP (split) Cust # 012230 IMIL1227915 07/26/2017 5.10
621-575740-249 LABORATORY CULLIGAN OF BURLINGTON CULLIGAN WWTP ACCT 500-08487456-8 500X01971205 07/20/2017 222.25
621-575740-249 LABORATORY IDEXX LABORATORIES IDEXX SUPPLIES WWTP 3018685684 07/12/2017 1,117.13
621-575740-249 LABORATORY IDEXX LABORATORIES 120ml Vessel w/sta 200-pack 3018912119 07/17/2017 150.03
621-575740-249 LABORATORY NCL OF WISCONSIN, INC NCL Acct No. 6900 WWTP supplies 392569 07/11/2017 27217
621-575740-249 LABORATORY QUILL CORPORATION QUILL CORP WWTP OFFICE SUPPLIES 7915250 06/29/2017 132.14
Total 621575740249: 2,095.90
621575740298
621-575740-298 CONTRACT SERVICE SIMPLEX GRINNELL LP Service call - Simplexm4002 System 83839840 06/30/2017 825.53
621-575740-298 CONTRACT SERVICE SIMPLEX GRINNELL LP Service call - Simplexm4002 System 83844941 07/03/2017 1,188.59
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Total 621575740298: 2,014.12
621575740310
621-575740-310 OFFICE SUPPLIES, POSTA  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTA  STAPLES WWTP OFFICE SUPPLIES 8045290505 07/01/2017 26.37
Total 621575740310: 26.37
621575740359
621-575740-359 SANITARY SEWER REPAIR, USABlueBook USA BLUEBOOK WATER DEPT #85786 301352 07/03/2017 137.85
621-575740-359 SANITARY SEWER REPAIR, DIGGERS HOTLINE, INC Diggers Hotline WWTP 170 6 42701 06/30/2017 234.03
Total 621575740359: 371.88
621575740375
621-575740-375 TV & SEAL SANITARY SEW  GREAT LAKES TV SEAL, INC 2017 Sanitary Sewer Inspection 18245 06/30/2017 13,063.31
Total 621575740375: 13,063.31
622501070000
622-501070-000 WORK IN PROGRESS Locators & Supplies, Inc Water Dept-Work in Progress 0257704-IN 07/05/2017 6,482.89
Total 622501070000: 6,482.89
622506250000
622-506250-000 MAINTENANCE-SUPPLIES MENARDS Menards Acct 32120265 37614 07/03/2017 49.90
622-506250-000 MAINTENANCE-SUPPLIES REINEMANS, INC. Supplies 128161 07/25/2017 36.19
Total 622506250000: 86.09
622506310000
622-506310-000 CHEMICALS HAWKINS, INC Chlorine 4109479 RI 07/10/2017 4,352.30
622-506310-000 CHEMICALS USABIueBook USA BLUEBOOK WATER DEPT #85786 301352 07/03/2017 360.00
Total 622506310000: 4,712.30
622506320000
622-506320-000 OPERATION SUPLIES, EXP  NORTHERN LAKE SERVICE, IN  NORTHERN LAKE SERVICE WATER 316467 06/27/2017 360.00
Total 622506320000: 360.00
622506510000
622-506510-000 MAINS, WATER BREAKS-SU  USABlueBook USA BLUEBOOK WATER DEPT #85786 301352 07/03/2017 463.24
622-506510-000 MAINS, WATER BREAKS-SU WANASEK CORPORATION Water Main Repairs-various locations 7357 07/11/2017 7,492.06
622-506510-000 MAINS, WATER BREAKS-SU DIGGERS HOTLINE, INC Diggers Hotline Water 170 6 42701 06/30/2017 234.03
Total 622506510000: 8,189.33
622506520000
622-506520-000 SERVICE-SUPPLIES Locators & Supplies, Inc Supplies - Water Dept 0257939-IN 07/12/2017 543.30
622-506520-000 SERVICE-SUPPLIES HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS, LT  HD Supply - Water Dept H332016 07/13/2017 115.00
Total 622506520000: 658.30
622506530000
622-506530-000 METERS, REPAIRS & TESTI BADGER METER, INC. BADGER METER WATER DEPT 80013249 06/30/2017 188.60
622-506530-000 METERS, REPAIRS & TESTI JCH WATER METER TESTING ~ JCH WATER METER LARGE WATER METERS 19023 06/20/2017 3,540.00
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Total 622506530000: 3,728.60
622509030000
622-509030-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES ALSCO ALSCO WATER DEPT IMIL1220671 07/05/2017 31.46
622-509030-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES ALSCO ALSCO WATER DEPT IMIL1223095 07/12/2017 31.46
622-509030-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES ALSCO ALSCO DPW - Water Customer #025570 IMIL1225509 07/19/2017 31.46
622-509030-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES ALSCO ALSCO WATER DEPT IMIL1227914 07/26/2017 31.46
Total 622509030000: 125.84
622509210000
622-509210-000 OFFICE SUPPLY STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTA  STAPLES WATER OFFICE SUPPLIES 8045290505 07/01/2017 40.60
Total 622509210000: 40.60
622509230000
622-509230-000 OUTSIDE SERVICES STARNET TECHNOLOGIES On-Site Service - Well 8 0090438-IN 07/19/2017 26,719.00
Total 622509230000: 26,719.00
622509300000
622-509300-000 MISCELLANEOUS-SUPPLIE  SOUTHERN LAKES NEWSPAPE  Hydrant Flushing 276294 (4) 06/07/2017 54.00
Total 622509300000: 54.00
622509330000
622-509330-000 TRANSPORTATION-SUPPLI  BUMPER TO BUMPER BURLING Filter's 1-327540 07/10/2017 27.02
Total 622509330000: 27.02
622509350000
622-509350-000 GENERAL PLANT-SUPPLIE ~ ALSCO ALSCO DPW (split) Customer # 074781 IMIL1223094 07/12/2017 12.05
622-509350-000 GENERAL PLANT-SUPPLIE ~ MENARDS WATER-SHOP SUPPLIES 38939 07/20/12017 26.23
622-509350-000 GENERAL PLANT-SUPPLIE ~ DONERITE JANITORIAL SERV | DoneRite Janitorial Cleaning for DPW (split) 3038 07/20/2017 408.00
Total 622509350000: 446.28
623575740242
623-575740-242 REPAIR,MAINTENANCE EQ  OTTER SALES & SERVICE, INC.  OTTER SALES AIRPORT TRACTOR 100539 07/10/2017 1,516.14
Total 623575740242: 1516.14
623575740245
623-575740-245 REPAIR,MAINTENANCE GR  HUGHES ELECTRIC, INC Grass Mowing at Airport 11323 07/20/2017 1,000.00
Total 623575740245: 1,000.00
Grand Totals: 219,461.06
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COMMON COUNCIL REGULAR ITEM NUMBER 10A

DATE: August1,2017
SUBJECT: LICENSES AND PERMITS

SUBMITTED BY: Diahnn Halbach, City Clerk

BACKGROUND/HISTORY:

1. APPROVAL OF OPERATOR'S LICENSES:

Operator’s licenses (aka Bartender’s License) shall be issued to individuals 18 years of age or over who do not
have an arrest or conviction record subject to secs. 111.321, 111.322, and 111.335 and will be responsible for
supervising activities and pouring of Class “A” beer, Class “B” beer, “Class B” intoxicating liquor, and “Class A”
intoxicating liquor and “Class C” wine on premises during required hours in absence of the licensee or approved
agent of licensed businesses.

Applicants are as follows:
Bartlett, Stephanie Ann
Carlson, Dawn Marie
Fitzgerald, Emma K.

Gehris, Beth Renee

Goza, Julianna

McDonough, Shannon Charissee
Najera, Emma

Rose, Cassandra Marie
Sarver, Brett Douglas
Wasmund, Alexandria Louise

2. APPROVAL OF SPECIAL EVENTS

¢ Sunday, August 20, 2017 - Bumper to Bumper Car Show - Chocolate Fest Grounds - 8 a.m. to 3 p.m.

e Saturday, August 26, 2017 - Restoration 5K / Life Bridge Church - Wehmhoff-Jucker Park - 8 a.m. to 12 p.m.

¢ Sunday, September 10, 2017 - Tri-County Riders Toy Run for Love Inc. - Chocolate Fest Grounds - 7 a.m. to
10 p.m.

o Saturday, September 16, 2017 - Through Nora's Eyes - Echo Park - 11 a.m. to 11 p.m.

e Thursday, November 23, 2017 - Burlington Turkey Trot - Wehmhoff-Jucker Park - 7 a.m. to 9:30 a.m.

BUDGET/FISCAL IMPACT:

Applicants are charged an administrative fee of which a portion of the funds are applied towards background
checks performed by the police department. Liquor license fees for businesses are calculated on a case by case
basis depending on the type of license applied for (noted above).

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the Common Council approve the presented licenses and permits.

TIMING/IMPLEMENTATION:
This item is scheduled for consideration at the August 1, 2017 Common Council meeting.







COMMON COUNCIL REGULAR ITEM NUMBER 15A

DATE: August1,2017
SUBJECT: MOTION 17-879 - to consider approving the 2016 Annual Audit.

SUBMITTED BY: Steven DeQuaker, Finance Dir.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY:

Since 1985, Patrick Romenesko, SC has been retained by the City to complete annual audits, Tax Increment
Finance District Audits and Summaries, and other financial reporting as required by the City of Burlington. This
accounting firm files the required Form C and PSC financial forms to the State. All funds of the City are audited in
addition to the Utilities, Airport and Housing Unit. Mr. Romenesko has completed the audit of the 2016 financials
as required by state law. For your convenience, a copy of the report is attached and Pat Romenesko will be
presenting the Audit to the Committee of the Whole this evening.

BUDGET/FISCAL IMPACT:

The City's Fund Balance at the end of 2016 is $1,996,447, which is down $67,001 from 2015. Fund Balance as a
percentage of expenditure for 2016 is 26.4%. As we have previously discussed in prior annual audit discussions,
there are still negative fund balances, but after TIF Close and in the 2019 budget year, these should be resolved.

Utility cash continues to improve as consistent review and rate adjustments are made. Airport continues to operate
in the black.

Self Insurance fund, while still funded, has been tapped due to higher than usual claims in 2016. Staff expects these
claims to subside and be closer to normal in 2017.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends adoption of the 2016 Annual Audit as presented by Patrick Romenesko, SC.

TIMING/IMPLEMENTATION:
This item will appear for final consideration on the August 1, 2017 Common Council agenda.

Attachments
Preliminary Audit Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the City Council
City of Burlington
Racine and Walworth Counties, Wisconsin

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Burlington, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Burlington’s basic financial

statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 7
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of t
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relggé*hf»’td the preparation and fair

presentation of financial statements that are free from material n %%atement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility ‘x%

o
My responsibility is to express opinions on these ﬁna:;fc al §f!atements based on my audit. Iconducted my
audit in accordance with auditing standards generz&ﬂ?;ﬁbcepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that I plan and perform the aﬁydiﬁggvobtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material mié’s%gytement.

S

An audit involves performing procedure;§.%t;£>"’dbtain evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The proceduresf%sgél t

c,etedj depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement ,%f’ft&ﬁe financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the audi;@f’e%*nsiders internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial ’ﬁa%%ents in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for,the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly,J"gxpress no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies uSe‘g and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,

as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit
opinions.

Opinions

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Burlington as of December 31, 2016, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, the cash flows thereof and the respective
budgetary comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.



Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the schedules
relating to pensions on page 51 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. I have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to the my inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge I obtained during my
audit of the basic financial statements. I do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide me with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

Management has omitted Management’s Discussion and Analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement’the basic financial

N . . & . .
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the basic ﬁnazlglali’statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be dfl?ef‘z%ntial part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. My opinion on the basic financial statements is not affect%i;b%g this missing information.

oy

By, e

Other Information

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinjoﬁ’sz&’()"n the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Burlington’s basic financial statg‘iﬂgnts. The accompanying supplemental
information, as listed in the table of contents, is pre§?1§’c‘e for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the of the basic financial stateﬁgneﬁ%

This supplemental information is the responﬁib%li% of management and was derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and-dther records used to prepare the financial statements. Such
. . i h, I NP . ) .
information has been subjected to the afﬁi%ing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional pro“géﬁ%lres, including comparing and reconciling such information ‘
directly to the financial statement§ themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally acceptedﬁfﬁ%h% United States of America. In my opinion, the information is fairly
stated in all material resp@o;g? it relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The Long-Term Debt‘S¢hedules as listed in the table of contents have not been subjected to the auditing
e N . . o

procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, I do not express an

opinion or provide any assurance on them.

PATRICK W. ROMENESKO, S.C.
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

Lake Geneva, Wisconsin
July 24, 2017



CITY OF BURLINGTON

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2016

Component
Primary Government Unit
Governmental ~ Business-type Housing
Assets Activities Activities Total Authority
Pooled cash and investments $ 2,423,151 $ 1,734,107 4,157,258 $ 74,294
Receivables:
2016 tax levy 10,330,108 - 10,330,108 -
Accounts and other 90,356 1,244,939 1,335,295 1,494
Special assessments 13,947 126,691 140,638 -
Internal balances 480,913 (480,913) - -
Inventories - 45,982 45,982 -
Prepaid items 21,368 - 21,368 14,769
Restricted assets - cash and investments 1,879,764 398,970 2,278,734 271,217
Notes receivable 1,852,426 - 1,852,426 -
Net pension asset - &% - -
Other deferred debits 65,915 105, 487 ’*» & 171,402 -
Capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation): (”“‘3 q“\‘«f“’
Land and land rights 20,147,482 1,164,332 21,311,814 87,236
Buildings and improvements 9,896,104 30 839 795 40,735,899 3,195,953
Land improvements and other structures 3,667,133 N %054 567 5,721,400 652,831
Machinery and equipment 7,566,917 N 1 }0 696 ,392 18,263,309 137,904
Infrastructure 43,777,543 “*’ 34,816,036 78,593,579 -
Less: accumulated depreciation (31,456 012/) i (34,533,400) (65,989,412) (1,866,665)
Total assets 70,757,115 48,212,685 118,969,800 2,569,033
Deferred Outflows of Resources ¢ Y, \%
Deferred outflows related to pension 2™2:834,270 538,230 3,372,500 33,072
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources), %‘%,591,385 48,750,915 122,342,300 2,602,105
Liabilities i";.si?b \)3
Accounts payable and other current liabilities. * “ 744,834 201,807 946,641 13,092
Accrued interest payable {lz\ 107,937 6,278 114,215 -
Deposits held 25,886 3,000 28,886 33,398
Liabilities payable from resmctecT as“%
Accrued interest payable f 9 - 56,024 56,024 -
Non-current liabilities: { \{\
Compensated absences, due beyond one year 304,353 81,640 385,993 -
Net pension liability 508,485 96,567 605,052 5,371
Bonds and notes payable, due within one year 3,934,696 1,011,978 4,946,674 29,568
Bonds and notes payable, due beyond one year 17,819,367 13,591,549 31,410,916 2,180,593
Total liabilities 23,445,558 15,048,843 38,494,401 2,262,022
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Property taxes 10,791,435 - 10,791,435 -
Deferred inflows related to pension 1,070,097 203,222 1,273,319 11,301
11,861,532 203,222 12,064,754 11,301
Net Position
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 31,845,104 30,716,377 62,561,481 264,485
Restricted for debt service 1,879,764 398,970 2,278,734 -
Restricted for pension benefits 1,255,688 238,441 1,494,129 16,400
Unrestricted 3,303,739 2,145,062 5,448,801 47,897
Total net position $ 38,284,295 $ 33,498,850 $§ 71,783,145 $ 328,782

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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A two-page statement of
activities follows.



CITY OF BURLINGTON
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Program Revenues
Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Functions/Programs
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
General government $ 1,16599 % 47,611 $ - $ -
Public safety 4,267,764 508,006 71,543 -
Public works 3,326,027 7,224 654,624 14,895
Health and human services 84,207 - -
Culture, recreation and education 1,558,915 52413 91,197
Conservation and development 885,663 26,227 ™, -
Interest and fiscal charges 518,516 - Iy -
Total governmental activities 11,807,089 641,481 ° 106,092
T, T
Business-type activities: e»i\;», > 7
Water 1,767,848 . 2@62,442 - 91,593
Sewer 3,564,680 ""ixy3,055,983 - 108,900
Airport 677,771 ¢, 654,147 - -
Total business-type activities 6,010,299 ™., 6,072,572 - 200,493
Total primary government 17,817,388, 6,714,053 1,049,714 306,585
B -
Component unit: A
Housing authority 434,995 $ 330,681 $ 83,334 $ -
General revenues:
Taxes:

Franchise taxes
Public accommodation taxes
Payments in lieu of taxes

to specific programs
Property rents
Loss on retirement of assets
Unrestricted investment earnings
Transfers
Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net position
Net position - beginning

Net position - ending

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
4

Property taxes levied for general purposes

Intergovernmental revenues not restricted



Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Component
Primary Government Unit
Governmental Business-type Housing
Activities . Activities Total Authority

$ (1118385 $ - % (1118385 § -
(3,688,215) - - (3,688,215) -
(2,649,284) - (2,649,284) .
(84,207) - (84,207) .
(1,091,758) - (1,091,758)
(859,436) - (859,436)
(518.516) - (518.516)
(10,009,802) - (10,009,802)
- 686,187 686,187
. (399,797) (399,797)
. (23,624) (23,624)
- 262,766 262,766 o -
(10,009,802) 262,766 (9,747,036) f“fg* -
N
;\ Y (20,980)
-~
. o
10,012,316 X {j 6012 316 -
131,538 N x \ 131,538 -
121,151 121,151 -
34,232 34,232 -
726,952 - 726,952 -
56,851 . 56,851 .
(11,885) - (11,885) -
119,119 (16,913) 102,206 358
540,875 (503,123) 37,752 -
11,731,149 (520,036) __ 11,211,113 358
1,721,347 (257,270) 1,464,077 (20,622)
36,562,948 33,756,120 70,319,068 349,404
$ 38284295 § 33498850 § 71783145 § 328,782




A two-page balance sheet - governmental
funds follows.
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A two-page statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances -
governmental funds follows.
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CITY OF BURLINGTON
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL

FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities (Pages 4 - 5) are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page 8)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Certain capital outlay costs that are recorded as capital assets

in the government-wide financial statements
Depreciation expense is recorded in the government-wide statements _
Net book value of assets retired affects net position 5 R Y

Changes in the net pension asset and related deferred inflows and outﬂgwy
of resources as a result of employer contributions, changes in assumptions and
proportionate share and the difference between the expected a%dg?@al'
experiencg of the plan . ;}

Long-term receivables not available are reported as rgyeﬁg:e}‘:h the fund financial
statements when collected or currently available, ﬁfﬁ‘h@re recognized as revenue
when earned in the government-wide ﬁnancia}{%e%ents.

Notes receivable transactions %Y ‘
Special assessments transactions

The issuance of long-term debt providﬁgyuiﬁrent financial resources
to governmental funds, while the-repayment of the principal of long-term
debt consumes the current ﬁﬁaﬁgi} resources of governmental funds. Neither
transactions, however, has, ‘ﬁh&%ffect on net position.
Principal payments afi&::fléfeasance of long-term debt

N
Some expenses report"‘écf in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial Tesources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.
Changes in interest accrued on long-term debt
Changes in compensated absences

The net revenue of internal service fund activity
is reported with governmental activities.

Change in net position of governmental activities (Pages 4 - 5)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
10

$ 157,581

542,941
(1,833,647)
(14,735)

(336,915)

(515,986)
(26,646)

3,945,851

24,453
5,567

(227,117)

$ 1,721,347




CITY OF BURLINGTON

GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
Original Variance
and Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Taxes:

- General property taxes $ 4,820,140 $ 4,817,528 $ (2,612)
Payments in lieu of taxes 35,000 34,232 (768)
Room tax 105,000 120,888 15,888
Other taxes 150 263 113

Intergovernmental 1,372,270 1,429,995 57,725

Licenses and permits 382,480 4};2?999 116,519

Fines and forfeitures 195,000 BVLS‘I? 201 (13,799)

Charges for services 101,000 f 102,383 1,383

Special assessments 25,000, " 33,745 8,745

Investment income 12, 500" } (1,957) (14,457)

 Other 28»8’00 21,208 (7,392)
Total revenues 7,077:440 7,238,485 161,345
b 4

Expenditures

Current:

General government 937,418 1,028,475 (91,057)
Public safety 3,669,186 3,592,911 76,275
"Public works 1,947,975 1,942,957 5,018

Health and human services 80,917 84,207 (3,290)
Culture, recreation and education {}‘* 675,217 546,641 128,576

Conservation and development%% o 196,260 225,143 (28,883)
Total expenditures , 7,506,973 7,420,334 86,639
Excess expenditpgé;:*;f)\fer revenues (429,833) (181,849) 247,984

Other Financin @ufces Uses

Transfers in ® 49,000 54,295 5,295

Transfers out (67,490) (455,322) (387,832)

Water utility tax equivalent 474,000 515,875 41,875

Total other financing sources and uses 455,510 114,848 (340,662)
Change in fund balances 25,677 (67,001) (92,678)

Fund balances - beginning 2,063,448 2,063,448 -
Fund balances - ending $ 2,089,125 $ 1,996,447 $  (92,678)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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A two-page statement of net position -
proprietary funds follows.
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A two-page statement of cash flows -
proprietary funds follows.
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STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Taxes receivable

Total assets

Liabilities
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to county and state
Due to school and VTAE districts
Deposits held

Total liabilities

Net Position

See accompanying notes to financial statements,

CITY OF BURLINGTON

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2016
Developers'
Municipal Reimbursement
Tax Roll Court Fund Totals
$ 8,371,695 $ 3,218 $ 7,611 $ 8,382,524
2,261,493 - - 2,261,493
10,633,188 3,218 7,611 10,644,017
141,752 - 144,970
2,697,305 - 2,697,305
7,794,131 - 7,794,131
- 7,611 7,611
10,633,188 7,611 10,644,017
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CITY OF BURLINGTON
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2016

Note 1 - Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles of state and local governments, except the Management’s Discussion and Analysis
has not been presented. Statement No. 34 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board calls for the
inclusion of this information as required supplementary information.

A. Reporting Entity

The City of Burlington (the city) is a municipal corporation governed by an elected mayor and eight-
member council. The accompanying financial statements present the city and its component unit, an entity
for which the city is considered to be financially accountable. The discretely presented component unit is
reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that it is legally
separate from the city. ‘%{:\

Component units are legally separate orgamzatlons for which the elected- oﬁf clals of the primary
government are financially accountable. The primary government is ﬁnancially accountable if it appoints a
voting majority of the organization’s governing body and (1) it is able o impose its will on that
organization or (2) there is a potential for the organization to prox ﬁg spemﬁc financial benefits to or
burdens on the primary government. Although it is a legally se%r dte entity, standards set forth in
Statement No. 61 of the Governmental Accounting Standa ‘Hs%Board require that the financial statements of
the Housing Authority of the City of Burlington be re ,orted as a component unit of the city due to the
appointment of its board of commissioners by the c1t , nayor. The Housing Authorlty of the City of
Burlington is reported as a discretely presented co ynent unit to emphasize that it is an entity that is
legally separate from the city. The financial mfdrmatlon included in the statement of net position is as of
the Housing Authority’s fiscal year ‘end of A‘\ gus 31 2016. Complete financial statements for the
component unit may be obtained at its ad;tmmstratlve offices.

Riverview Manor {E}
580 Madison Street N{“
Burlington, Wisconsin 5 31 QS 7\“’

li‘ Fund Financial Statements

B. Government—Wu:l,

The government- “wide' anc1al statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of changes
in net position) report information on all of the nonﬁduc1ary activities of the primary government and its
component unit. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.
Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for
support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally separate component
units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.
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Note 1 - Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements - Continued

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds,
even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and the fiduciary fund financial statements.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed
by the provider have been met. ‘*’»E%
o 1 ‘? (4
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current ﬁén?z}dc;al resources measurement
Jocus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are 1 gggkgmzed as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available When they are collectible within the
cutrent period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the*cfirrént period. For this purpose, the
government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current
fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a’liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expend’it_;gé“s related to compensated absences and claims
and judgments, are recorded only when payment ig glug»
Property taxes, franchise fees, licenses, and ilﬁe{e” t associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual angl,%s:‘ ) have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period.

.....

Only the portion of special assessments..;écgl\gable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be
susceptible to accrual as revenue gf ghé’ ¢ufrent period. All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only Whg‘t;%(;}ash is received by the city.

Funds are organized as eithé?‘%'aj‘dr funds or non-major funds within the governmental, proprietary, and
fiduciary statements. A ﬁnﬁiﬁs considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the government or
meets the following crft}\r?ﬁ

4

1. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or
enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or
type, and

2. Total assets, liabilities, revenues or expenditures/expenses of the individual governmental fund
or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all governmental and
enterprise funds combined.

3. In addition, any other governmental or proprietary fund that the government considers to be

particularly important to financial statement users may be reported as a major fund. The city
chose to report its airport enterprise fund as a major fund.
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Note 1 - Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation - Continued

Major Funds
The city reports the following major governmental funds:

The General fund is the city’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the city
except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

TIF No. 3 Debt service fund - accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal and
interest on long-term obligation debt of the city’s Tax Incremental Financing District No. 3.

TIF No. 5 Capital projects fund - accounts for the financial resources segregated for the acquisition and
construction of major capital facilities for the city’s Tax Incremental Financing District No. 5.

Environmental TIF District fund - accounts for remediation and other capital costs as authorized by the
Wisconsin statutes. Q,,
”*»,»

The city reports the following major proprietary funds: {ﬂ L

Sewer utility enterprzse Jund - accounts for the activities of, opératli;{g the sewage treatment plant,
sewage pumping stations and collections systems. :

Water utility enterprise fund - accounts for the activ%iisngf 6perating the water distribution system.

Airport enterprise fund - accounts for the activitieggf’the city’s airport operations.

Non-Major Funds "@» |

The city reports the following non-major gove 1o

Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue\fu és are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are restricted to expendltures}}or specified purposes.
Library Operations
Community Developmg jtxg»iock Grant
TIF No. 3 Revolvmgw‘
Park Developn; en s
Library Trust ™,

Police Donatiorfs
Wehmhoff

Debt Service Fund - Debt service funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of general long-term debt principal and interest.
General Debt Service

Capital Projects Funds - Capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources segregated for
the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities.

Energy Improvement

Revolving Capital Projects

Infrastructure

Storm water Management

Facade Grants
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Note 1 - Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation - Continued

Additionally, the city reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Fund - The internal service fund is used to account for the financing of goods or services
provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the city, on a cost
reimbursement basis. The city’s internal service fund accounts for the city’s risk financing activities
related to its employee health insurance medical claims.

Agency Funds - Trust and agency funds are used to account for assets held by the city in a trustee capacity
or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments and/or other funds. For the city, the
agency funds are:

Tax Roll Fund

Municipal Court Bond Fund

Developers’ Reimbursement Fund G
p @&

\the government-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes éxfd other charges between the
city’s water and sewer function and various other functions of the ity Elimination of these charges would
distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the variou functions concerned.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated frofit

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) chargeg-‘%ﬂcustomers or applicants for goods, services,
or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contri ygorigf“ and 3) capital grants and contributions,
including special assessments. Internally dedicated resotirces are reported as general revenues rather than

. . 4 7
as program revenues. Likewise, general revenuesggmﬁde all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues’and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result frémi-providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s @%a ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
water enterprise fund, the sewer erigf%hse fund, and the airport enterprise fund are charges to customers
for sales and services. The Wat’%xg d sewer enterprise funds also recognize as operating revenue the
portion of tap fees intended t’“rg} over the cost of connecting new customers to the system. Operating
expenses for enterprise funds’and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expense%ﬁllnv "depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reportedas nonoperating revenues and expenses.
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Note 1 - Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity
1. Cash and Investments

The city’s cash and investments consist of cash on hand, checking accounts, savings accounts, certificates
of deposit, the state Local Government Investment Pool and government agency securities. Pooled bank
accounts that are shared between its various accounting funds are maintained. Each fund’s cash balance
represents the residual cash available to it after all other transactions.

Investment of city funds are restricted by state statutes. Permitted investments for the city include any of
the following:

(1) Time deposits maturing within three years in any credit union, bank, savings bank, trust
company or savings and loan association which is authorized to do business in Wisconsin. (2)
Bonds or securities issued or guaranteed by the federal government and its” agen01es (3) The
Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool and Wisconsin Investménf Frust. (4) Bonds or
securities of any county, city, drainage district, technical college d1stﬁ6t +local exposition district,
local professional baseball park district, city, town, or school dlStI‘lCé[ oﬁﬁje state and the University
of Wisconsin Hospitals and Clinics Authority. (5) Any security Which matures or which may be
tendered for purchase at the option of the holder within not mog;than seven years of the date
which it is acquired, if that security has a rating which is,the thhest or second highest rating
category assigned by a nationally recognized rating aggn%%?»or if that security is senior to, or on
parity with, a security of the same issuer which has ‘such:- 4 rating. (6) Repurchase agreements with
T,
public depositories, if the agreement is secured by ’federal bonds or securities. (7) Securities of
open-end management companies or 1nvestme it tf'usts (mutual funds) if the portfolio is limited to
() bonds or securities issued by the federal. government or a commission, board or other
instrumentality of the federal government« (bj féonds that are guaranteed as to principal and interest
by the federal government or a comm1ss10n board or other instrumentality of the federal
government, and (c) repurchase agref}hents that are fully collateralized by these bonds and

securities.
\5’
o0
2. Receivable and Paygiéles

Accounts receivable ih, g?lb\ﬁmds report amounts that have arisen in the ordinary course of business and are
stated net of allowances for uncollectable amounts.

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of
the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans)
or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding
balances between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding
between the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide
financial statements as “internal balances.”

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve

account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are
not expendable available financial resources.
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Note 1 - Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity - Continued
2. Receivable and Payables - Continued

Property taxes are levied in December on the assessed value as of the prior January 1. Property taxes are
recorded as a receivable and deferred revenue in the appropriate fund in the year levied because the taxes
are restricted to funding the succeeding year’s budget appropriations. In addition to property taxes for the
city, taxes are collected for and remitted to the state and county governments as well as the local school
districts and technical college district. Taxes for all state and local governmental units billed in the current
year for the succeeding year are reflected as deferred revenues and due to other governments on the
statement of net position. Property tax payments received prior to year end are reflected in the agency
fund. Interest on delinquent property taxes is recognized as revenue when received.

Details of the city’s property tax calendar for the 2016 tax levy follows:

Lien and levy dates December 201 %Z‘?&

Real estate collection due dates: ( ] P
First installment due January 31, 2017
Second installment due July 3 L,gm 7

Personal property tax due in full J atﬁﬁ“ny% 1,2017

Final settlement with county sAugust 2017

Tax sale of 2016 delinquent real fg} 7

estate taxes

jes

F gt?f% “October 2019

3. Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventories of the utility enterprise fund are tenerally used in the operation and maintenance of the water
utility. The inventories are valued at cQ f&ﬁr@t-m, first-out method), which is not in excess of market
value. Inventories of governmentgl iﬁi%dg’are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when
purchased. N

4. Restricted Assets &%:;&

Cash and equivalents«f(ig tﬁé city’s utilities have been restricted by bond resolution for the following

purposes:
VWater Sewer
Utility Utility Totals
Bond reserve account $ 205,003 $ --- $ 205,003
Bond debt service fund - 193,967 193,967
Total $ 205,003 $ 193,967 $§ 398,970
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Note 1 - Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued
D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity - Continued

5. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, buildings, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g. roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as
assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two
years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.
Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects %ie%g’onstructed. Interest
incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type act;i%fij%ges' is included as part of the
capitalized value of assets constructed. oV
Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as Well‘-».ags::]‘?he component units, is depreciated
using the straight line method over the following estimated usegul%}j?gesr

"y
As§et§ . | Year§ yﬂ;"‘%&f
Buildings 50.- 7 o5
Land improvements A{<<359},
Roads ¢ 5{;30
Other infrastructure ™30 - 50
Vehicles \ ™7 5-10
Office equipment o) 6-10

Computer equipment e 3 5

6. Compensated Absences . S

City employees earn Vacatifox‘;}\me in varying amounts and it must generally be taken by the employee’s
anniversary date accordjg%fgcity policy. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-
wide, proprietary, an(fyﬁ uciary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in
governmental funds onl?r if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and

retirements.
7. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents
a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow
of resources (expense) until then. The city has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category. The
item is related to the city’s proportionate share of the Wisconsin Retirement System pension plan and is
deferred and amortized over the expected remaining service lives of the pension plan participants.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents
an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of
resources (revenue) until that time. The city has one type of item that qualifies for reporting in this
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Note 1 - Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity - Continued
7. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources - Continued

category, property taxes. This amount will be recognized as an inflow of resources in the subsequent year
for which it was levied. The city also has an additional type of item, which arises only under a modified
accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable
revenue, is reported only in the governmental fund balance sheet. The governmental fund reports
unavailable revenues from special assessments. This amount is deferred and recognized as an inflow of
resources in the period the amount become available.

8. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net é‘\é,ﬁgtién.

2005 .
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize borﬁgrennums and discounts, as well

as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount gi%de t issued is reported as other
financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported, a$ other financing sources while
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses%%?ssuance costs, whether or not withheld

from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt:service expenditures.

IS >

9. Pensions 4 % iﬁ
For purposes of measuring the net pension asset, e?éf”red outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension exp%n"é;:; information about the fiduciary net position of the
Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS) and ac%di?ibns to/deductions from WRS’ fiduciary net position have
been determined on the same basis as thefﬁf% reported by WRS. For this purpose, benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contrib?f%'?ons) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. Investments are repojted-at fair value.

N

10. Fund Equity \*;S“
Accounting principles_ggﬁ‘é*aﬁy accepted require the classification of fund balances into various
components. The co pgnénts used by the city in the fund financial statements are defined as follows:

Nonspendable - This component of fund balance includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are
either (a) not in spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The “not in
spendable form” criterion includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash such as inventories
and prepaid amounts.

Restricted - This component of fund balance is used when constraints placed on the use of resources are
either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or law or
regulations of other governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

Assigned - This component of fund balance represents amounts that are constrained by the city’s intent to
be used for specific purposes.

Unassigned - This component of fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund.
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Note 1 - Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position or Equity - Continued

10. Fund Equity - Continued

In the government-wide statements, fund equity is termed net position and reported as the following three
components:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - This represents capital assets net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by any debt attributable to the acquisition or construction of the
capital assets net of any unspent debt proceeds.

Restricted net position - This represents net position restricted by external groups, laws and
regulations, or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net position -This represents net position that does not meet“”‘he criteria of the
above components of net position. i;}%

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are avaﬂable for use, 1t is{the city’s policy to use
unrestricted resources first, then restricted resources as they are needed

11. Utility User Rates \*}

Water utility user rates currently in place were estabhshed b;'. the Wisconsin Public Service Commission
effective January 27, 2016. Sewer utility rates currenﬂé\m place were approved by the city council
effective January 1, 2014. { {;}s

0%

E. Accounting Changes 7

The Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS)Xadopted GASB Statement No. 82, Pension Issues, an
amendment of GASB No. 67, No. 68 gnﬂ’No 73 issued during the year ended December 31, 2015.
Statement No. 82 addresses the pres entatlon of payroll-related measures in the Required Supplementary
Information, the selection of assf‘i% tions used in determining the total pension liability and related
measures, and the class1ﬁcat\’bn\f employer-paid member contributions.

Note 2 - Reconciliati(’”)ﬁ%vaovernment-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

A. Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the
Government-Wide Statement of Net Position

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance - total governmental
funds and net position - governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net
position.

The city’s proportionate share of the Wisconsin Retirement System pension plan is not an available
financial resource; therefore, it is not reported in the fund financial statements:

Deferred outflows of resources $ 2,834,270
Net pension liability (508,485)
Deferred inflows of resources (1,070,097
Net adjustment $ 1,255,688
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Note 2 - Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements - Continued

A. Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the
Government-Wide Statement of Net Position - Continued

Another element of that reconciliation explains that “long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not
due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.” The details of this
$22,166,353 difference are as follows:

Bonds and notes payable $21,754,063
Accrued interest payable 107,937
Compensated absences payable 304,353
Net adjustment $22,166,353

B. Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances and the Government-Wide.Statement of Activities

bo D
The financial statements include a reconciliation of the statement of revg{g@és%:ﬁpenditures and changes in
fund balances of governmental funds to the statement of activities. Oné e%ément of that reconciliation
explains that “Long-term receivables not available are reported as ,revénué’fn the fund financial statements
when collected or currently available, but are recognized as revenu?é‘\?@’ﬁden earned in the government-wide
financial statements.” The details of these differences are as follgws:
2;& A,

Notes receivable issued 17 Nl $ 51,701

Principal repayments received on and incentive %i?‘%

forgiveness of notes receivable 7 (567,687)
Special assessments levied e {& / 7,099
Special assessments collected S (33,745)
Net adjustment made “{;{;}% $ (542,632)

7N
Note 3 - Stewardship, Compliance-f&li{fAccountabilitv

S
A. Budgetary Informatj;obg%f

The city reviews and ad ﬁg§1€s annual budget by December or earlier of the preceding year. The budgetary
- information included ?nﬁ;the accompanying financial statements is comprised of the originally approved
budget plus or minus approved revisions of budgeted revenues and expenditures. These budgets are
adopted on a basis consistent with GAAP. Management control of the budgetary process has been
established at the departmental level of expenditure. A department can be a fund, cost center, program or
other activity for which control of expenditures is considered desirable. Budget appropriations for certain
capital projects funds are project oriented, often possessing multi-year lives; consequently, budgeted capital

projects expenditures are controlled through fund balances.

The budget may be amended for supplemental appropriations periodically during the year. Budget changes
require a two-thirds approval by the city council. The 2016 general fund budget was not amended.
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Note 3 - Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability - Continued

B. Deficit Fund Equity
The following individual funds had deficit fund balances as of December 31, 2016.

Amount of

Deficit
Environmental TIF district capital projects fund $(1,842,069)
TIF No 5 capital projects fund (160,729)
Infrastructure capital projects fund (1,037,344)
Swimming pool capital projects fund (61,915)
Facade grant capital projects fund (5,844)

The deficit fund balance in the environmental TIF district capital projects funds will be eliminated in loan
receivable repayments and tax increments. The deficit fund balance in the inﬁ;gsguctum and TIF No. 5
funds will be eliminated by future borrowing or general fund transfers. The Eggcit fund balance facade
grant fund will be eliminated by future general fund transfers or propergmg}%evies.

C. General Fund Nonspendable Fund Balances P, P

The fund balance of the general fund at December 31, 2016%wa;j‘mé%)‘ﬁ§pendable for the following:
Prepaid expenditures f%)*‘;” $ 11,684

; 5:;){ s
»

D. Utility Bond Covenant Compliance 3’2}

The 2011 Waterworks System Revenue Refgﬁ*dl;lg 'Bonds, Series 2011A require the maintenance of a bond
reserve account in the amount of $205,000.,This account was properly funded at December 31, 2016 (see

Note 1.D.4). f";%% )

Y
Resolutions for water and sewer e{:ﬁe bonds also specify that a debt service fund be established for
monthly deposits of principaband‘interest payments coming due. Monthly deposits to fund the calculated
balances required at year en&\?i“é?e not made; however, bond resolutions additionally stipulate that amounts
transferred to the debt seryi€e’fund be sufficient to pay principal and interest on bonds as the payments

become due. All pﬁﬂ&gﬂ and interest payments on outstanding debt were made timely.

Ty
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Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds

A. Cash and Investments ‘
The city’s cash and investments at December 31, 2016 consisted of the following:

Weighted

Average to
Carrying  Maturity
Amount (Days)

Petty cash $ 1,158 N/A
Interest bearing checking

and money market accounts 12,670,759  Demand
State local government investment pool 306,106 61
Certificates of deposit 1,160,493 458
Government agency securities 680,000 636
Total carrying amount $ 14,818,516 >

%}5**

The city addresses the following risks related to its cash and investg%}lts

Credit Risk Q"““”\B
The city has policies to minimize credit risk, which is the risk of loss due to the failure of the
security issuer or backer, by: % -

e Limiting investments to the types of securi;ti’eg listed in the policy resolution.

e  The common council shall by resoluti@ﬁgeagﬁ year approve the public depositories
within the city that are deemed apprgggafe for use under the state and federal law.

* Diversifying the investment pog;tquig{s’g that the impact of potential losses from any
one type of security or from an¥,one individual issuer will be minimized.

¢  Maintain balances with its banking financial institutions that do not exceed the combined
amount FDIC insurance afid State Deposit Guarantee Fund insurance, along with the amount
of collateralized dgpg)f,xt(f%’er an agreement with its primary banking institution. However,
deposits may tem bfarﬁy exceed the insured and collateralized amounts during periods

when prope tag?§ e collected.

Interest Rate Risk , (77}’
The city has polfdige§'sfé minimize interest rate risk, which is the risk that the market value of
securities in thé’portfolio will fall due to changes in market interest rates, by:
e Structuring the investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash
requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell securities on the
open market prior to maturity.

Custodial Risk
The city has policies to minimize custodial risk, which is the risk that in the event of a financial
institution failure, the city’s deposits may not be returned to it, by: '
e Maintaining a list of financial institutions, public depositories and broker/dealers
authorized by resolution to provide deposit and investment services.
¢ All financial institutions, public depositories and broker/dealers authorized by
resolution to provide deposit and investment services must supply as appropriate
audited financial statements demonstrating compliance with state and federal capital
adequacy guidelines.
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Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds - Continued

A. Cash and Investments - Continued

Total cash and investments above reconcile to the financial statements as follows:
Statement of net position:

Cash and investments $ 4,157,258
Restricted cash and investments 2,278,734
Total reported on statement of net position 6,435,992
Statement of fiduciary net position 8,382,524
Total Cash and Investments | $ 14,818,516

City cash and investments are insured by the FDIC for up to $250,000 for time and savings deposits
(including interest-bearing NOW accounts), and an additional $250,000 of FDIC insurance is available for
demand (non-interest bearing checking accounts) for each bank used. All city deposits are also insured by
the State Deposit Guarantee Fund in the amount of $400,000. However, due, 1o the relatively small size of
Guarantee Fund in relationship to the total deposits covered and other le&a\mpllcat1ons recovery of material
principal losses of the pool may not be significant to individual mummpalf}tés

The Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) is an investment fu\ha managed by the State of Wisconsin
Investment Board. The LGIP accepts deposits from governmentq} thits within the State of Wisconsin. The
objectives of the LGIP are to provide safety of principal, 11qu1d1ty’ and a reasonable rate of return. The
LGIP is regulated by the Wisconsin Statutes and is not a SEC; tegistered investment. The yield of the LGIP
changes daily and its participants may invest or withdr? ay any or all amounts at par value at any time. The
LGIP balance reported in the financial statements ag %06 106 at December 31, 2016 is at cost basis. The
fair value of the LGIP investment at Decemb?{g} 5 20’?6 did not materially differ from its cost basis. The
LGIP had a weighted average maturity of 61 aﬁys;at December 31, 2016.

For purposes of the statement of cash fl s for the enterprise funds, cash equivalents are temporary cash
investments with a maturity of three E‘{x:}g}:;aﬁ"hs or less at the date of purchase.

Fair Value Measurements of hvéaﬁhents

The city implemented GASB\gt"”tement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, for the year
ending December 31, 2016 ﬁhe village categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value
hierarchy established. Qﬁéénerally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation
inputs used to measure the fair value of the assets and is described as follows:

Level 1 Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that a
government can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 Significant inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 Significant unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.

Fair Value Measurements Using:
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Investments:
Government Agency Securities $§ 680,000 $ --- $ - $ 680,000

31



Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds - Continued

B. Receivables

Receivables as of yearend for the city’s individual major funds and nomhaj or, internal service, and
fiduciary funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectable accounts, are as
follows:

TIF No. 3 Nonmajor
Debt Environmental =~ Water Sewer and Fiduciary
General Service TIF Utility Utility Funds Totals
Receivables:
Taxes - current $ 5,312,285 $ 4,023,219 § 42,692 $ .- $ ---  §$ 3,073,150 $12,451,346
Accounts and other 33,776 e .- 736,214 501,900 - 1,271,890
Special assessments 13,947 --- --- 52,345 74,346 --- 140,638
Notes --- --- . 986,236 - - 866,190 1,852,426

Net total receivables  § 5,360,008 $ 4,023,219 § 1,028,928 $ 788,559 § 576,246 $ 3,939,340 $ 15,716,300

&S
Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivablesfor revenues that are not
considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Goizérnmental funds also defer

revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been recei: ed but not yet earned. At the
end of the current fiscal year, the various components of dderrgg %} enue and unearned revenue reported

in the governmental funds were as follows: e
o |
O W Unavailable = Unearned
Property and other taxes receivable (mxxé’ $ --- $ 10,310,522
Water utility property tax equivalent P -é; géy --- 480,913
Special assessments not yet due (general fund 33,533 ---
Notes and accounts receivable 3 1,879,193 ---
Total deferred/unearned revenue fO}a,gfyoyééj;nmental funds $ 1,912,726 $ 10,791,435
The city has issued notes receivabi;e:*éwhich are due for the following purposes:
@,%:5} Date of Interest Original Balance
Purpose f?} Note Rate Principal 12/31/16
Environmental TIFsCapital Projects 9/1/10 7.0% 1,160,000 $ 986,236
Community Development Block Grant 7/6/10 2.0% 340,000 264,734
Community Development Block Grant 12/31/11 2.0% 400,000 176,000 *
Community Development Block Grant 7/2/13 0.0% 202,500 202,500 *
Community Development Block Grant 6/1/15 Varies 28,410 24,464
TIF No. 3 Revolving Loan 1/24/13 1.625% 150,000 146,791
TIF No. 3 Revolving Loan 7/01/16 1.75% 51,701 ** 51,701
Total $ 1,852426

* - Contains forgiveness provisions for full time employees added.
** - Total commitment is $70,000, proceeds issued during 2016 was $51,701.
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Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds -

Continued

C. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2016 was as follows:

Primary Government

Governmental Activities
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Land improvements and other structures
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and other improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Balance
$ 20,147,482 $ --- - $ 20,147,482
20,147,482 --- --- 20,147,482
9,896,104 --- 9,896,104
3,625,016 --- 3,667,133
7,342,288 (42 702) 7,566,917
43,609,965 --- 43,777,543
64,473,373 471 026 (42,702) 64,907,697

%:S:x;\ 3

(3,894,669),, ~4(378,701)
(4,893 986)% (427,359)
(20, 8@1,67‘7)}‘ (1,027.587)

--- (4,273,370)
27,967  (5,293,378)
—-- (21,889264)

27,967  (31,456,012)

(29,,650%32) (1,833,647)
W

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net {34 823,041 (1,356,621)

(14,735) 33,451,685

\§$ 54,970,523 $ (1,356,621) $

(14,735) § 53,599,167
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Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds -

C. Capital Assets - Continued

Business Type Activities

Water Utility
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment

- Infrastructure

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less: accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

Sewer Utility
Capital assets, not being deprec1ated
Land

Total capital assets, not bemg deﬁféﬁlated

Capital assets, being depreg a&i
Buildings and system %

Machinery and equl
Infrastructure

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less: accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and system
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

Continued
Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
$ 260,027 $ ---  §$ --- $ 260,027
260,027 - --- 260,027
3,055,811 - --- 3,055,811
3,314,928 67,202 (12,000) 3,370,130
18,680,780 171,256 (41,896) 18,810,140
25,051,519 238 458 g‘o (53,896) 25,236,081
"‘«9
7 S
(1,086,635) %5%13 : .- (1,181,770)
(1,425,839) 1,764) 12,000 (1,605,603)
(4,857,983) %\(345 684) 41,896 (5,161,771)
(7,370 457% (632 583) 53,896 (7,949,144)
17 6§L062 (394,125) .- 17,286,937
“""]5;941 089 $ (394,125) $ - $ 17,546,964
778,671 $ --- 3 - $ 778,671
778,671 - --- 778,671
27,156,174 - --- 27,156,174
7,025,079 39,792 (39,959) 7,024,912
16,005,896 --- --- 16,005,896
50,187,149 39,792 (39,959) 50,186,982
(12,901,099) (1,046,249) --- (13,947,348)
(5,934,176) (318,503) 33,972 (6,218,707)
(4,642,750) (320,118) --- (4,962,868)
(23,478,025) (1,684,870) 33,972 (25,128,923)
26,709,124 (1,645,078) (5,987) 25,058,059

$ 27,487,795 § (1,645,078) $

(5,987) $ 25,836,730
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Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds - Continued

C. Capital Assets - Continued

Business Type Activities - Continued

Beginning _ Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Airport
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 125,634 $ --- _ § --- § 125,634
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 125,634 - - - --- 125,634
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings 627,810 .- --- 627,810

Land improvements 2,054,267 --- --- 2,054,267

Machinery and equipment 301,350 --- 301,350
Total capital assets being depreciated 2,983,427 > 2,983,427
Less: accumulated depreciation: N

Buildings (27,188) “‘(»13‘-*74‘1499) --- (44,387)

Land improvements (1,061,421) @s&&:ﬁ ,817) --- (1,126,238)

Machinery and equipment (270,016) 14,692) --- (284,708)
Total accumulated depreciation (1,358 625)%%‘»’ (96,708) --- (1,455,333)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net ,6%?:%@2 (96,708) - - - 1,528,094
Business-type activities capital assets, net {m‘%&’ﬂSO 436 § (96,708) $ --- $ 1,653,728

4

Depreciation expense was charged to flmcjiczb'i}s/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government {;% $ 40,275
Public safety \in(;». 288,743
Highways and streetsJ cludmg depreciation of general
infrastructurg ’;}s ets 1,274,154
Culture and recreation 230,475
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 1,833,647
Busiriess-type activities:
Water , $ 611,526
Sewer 1,684,870
Airport 96,708
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 2,393,104
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Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds - Continued
C. Capital Assets - Continued
Discretely Presented Component Unit

Capital asset activity for the Housing Authority for the year ended August 31, 2015 follows:

Beginning _ Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 87,236 $ ---  § --- _ $§ 87,236
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 3,165,294 31,599 (940) 3,195,953
Furniture and equipment 652,559 272 --- 652,831
Landscaping 137,904 --- --- 137,904
Total capital assets being depreciated 3,955,757 31,871 %\{g’x (940) 3,986,688
Less: accumulated depreciation (1,755,849) (111 756)“% %3" 940 (1,866,665)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 2,199,908 (79,885) i” --- 2,120,023
M, )
Total Capital Assets $ 2287144 §$ ‘(7;\9’1;85?5) $ --- $ 2207259
o

Accumulated depreciation by capital asset category for the hggs‘”i“ﬁg authority is not available,

D. Interfund Receivables, Payables and Tmnsfers}% Y

The composition of interfund balances as of D{fgf\ﬁer 31, 2016, is as follows:
Due to/from other funds: {”:
Receivable Fund .. Payable Fund Amount
oy
General Water utility (tax equivalent) $ 480,913
General Environmental TIF district 70,399
General TIF No. 5 317,797
General Swimming pool 61,915
General Facade grant fund 5,844
S 936868
Advances to/from other funds:
Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Infrastructure capital projects $ 1,424,252
TIF No. 3 debt service Environmental TIF district 1,771,462
$3195714

The advance by the TIF No. 3 debt service fund to the environmental TIF fund will be paid through tax
increment sharing established by city resolution. The city is establishing a five-year financing plan that is
expected to include settling the general fund advance to the infrastructure fund by a combination of
budgetary allotments and borrowed money. The advances by the general fund and the water and sewer
utilities will be repaid by revenue being generated from rates presently in place and from additional
revenue from future rate increases.
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Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds - Continued

D. Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers - Continued

Interfund Transfers: Transfers In

TIF No. 3 Storm

Revolving Park Debt Water Facade

General Loan Development  Service =~ Management Grants Totals
Transfers Out:
General fund $ --- $§ 158914 $§ 25000 $ 123582 $ 127,826 $§ 20,000 § 455322
TIF No. 3 loan fund 29,295 --- .- --- --- --- 29,295
Airport 25,000 - - --- - - - --- - - 25,000
Totals § 54295 $ 158914 $§ 25000 $ 123582 $§ 127,826 § 20,000 $§ 509,617

E. Long-Term Obligations
Outstanding debt and other long-term obligations of the city at December 31, 2016 follows:

Outstanding Pnnci}:v:i”»

Interest  Original At 12/31/16) ¥
Issue Rate(s) Principal General Rroptietary Purpose

General obligation debt: "x,“’:‘%
2007 refunding bonds 4.1%-4.375% 1,500,000 $ 1,500, 000‘% $ - -- Infrastructure
2011 refunding bonds 2.0%-3.0% 9,120,000 3,960,0¢ --- TIF 3 - riverfront
2012A street bonds 2.0%-2.8% 3,155,000 3 055, 000 --- Infrastructure
2012B refunding bonds 2.0%-3.0% 1,460,000 5 710,000 - -~ Pension, ER TIF, various
2014A refunding bonds 04%-3.2% 6,200, 000%%» 3 720,000 1,535,000 TIF 3, ERTIF, water, sewer
2015A refunding bonds 2.0%-3.0% 4 215@(, gé)‘\‘ 2,815,000 --- TIF3
2015B promissory notes 0.7%-2.25% 4,500; 6W 4,500,000 --- TIF5
2015 bank note 2.25%-3.25% z%*3%(?);6 000 300,000 --- TIFS

Total bonds and notes 20,560,000 1,535,000

o @

Other long-term obligations:
Developer revenue agreement “"O% 2,000,000 113,866 -~- TIFno.3
2013 energy lease purchase, -{; 98% 1,147,507 1,020,588 - -~ Energy conservation
2013 equipment lease purcﬁase} 2.15% 342,149 - 141,241 Sewer vactor
2014 equipment lease pur%l?a?e 2.581% 147,220 59,609 --- DPW chipper truck
Compensated absences?Note 5B.) 304,353 81,640

Total other long-term obligations 1,498,416 222,881
Utility revenue debt:
2008 CWF bonds (1) 2.569% 4,465,837 --- 2,971,113 Sewer
2008 CWF bonds (2) 2.365% 926,948 --- 586,047 Sewer
2011 refunding bonds 2.0%-3.5% 2,050,000 --- 1,235,000 Water
2012 CWF bonds 2.625% 7,439,911 .- 6,501,562 Sewer
2012 CWF water bonds 2.2% 2,044,276 --- 1,633,564 Water

Total utility revenue debt --- 12,927,286
Total Long-Term Obligations $22,058,416 $14,685,167
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Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds - Continued

E. Long-Term Obligations - Continued

A. General obligation debt

Annual debt service requirements to maturity of general obligation debt are as follows:

General City Proprietary Fund
Year Ended Long-Term Debt Long-Term Debt
December 31, Principal Interest Principal Interest Totals

2017 $ 3,725,000 $ 440,498 § 65,000 $§ 35926 $ 4,266,424
2018 3,620,000 373,772 60,000 35,398 4,089,170
2019 2,375,000 312,007 65,000 34,691 2,786,698
2020 2,605,000 253,502 65,000 33,798 2,957,300
2021 1,395,000 206,133 100,000 32,459 1,733,592
2022-2026 3,880,000 659,415 590,000 127,324 5,256,739
2027-2031 2,560,000 227,313 590,000 }97 505 3,414,818
2032 400,000 5,600 - - - g )t 405,600

$ 20,560,000 $2,478,240 $1,535,000 £y ),«»337 101 $24,910,341

General city and proprietary fund indebtedness represented by geg;éralxgbhgatlon notes totaled $22,095,000
on December 31, 2016. The city’s full faith and credit back the% general obligation notes. Transactions
for 2016 are summarlzed as follows:

e ‘%M

N
Balance - January 1, 2016 %, $ 25,725,000
Proceeds from bonds and notes , faﬁ ——
Principal reductions Ay‘*ﬁm{% o (3,630,000)
Balance - December 31, 2016 ™/ $ 22,095,000
B. Tax increment project revenue B’L@"?ﬁs

> AN
Tax increment indebtedness repre@é’flkt%d by the revenue bonds totaled $113,865 on December 31, 2016.
These bonds were issued for,th¢yarious developer and construction incentive agreements. The repayments

are based on a tax incremet ta
Transactions for 2016 arelst

Balance - J anuaryﬁi{2016

\foxmula and the balance is expected to be paid in full during 2017.

urMimarized as follows:

$ 401,928
Principal reductions (288,062)
Balance - December 31, 2016 $ 113,866
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Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds - Continued
E. Long-Term Obligations - Continued

C. Utility revenue debt

Annual debt service requirements to maturity of utility revenue debt are as follows:

Year Ended
December 31, Principal Interest Totals

2017 $ 877,109 $ 324,590 $ 1,201,699
2018 899,507 301,196 1,200,703
2019 922,348 277,205 1,199,553
2020 950,640 252,320 1,202,960
2021 974,397 226,363 1,200,760

2022 - 2026 4,320,469 776,091 5,096,560

2027 - 2031 3,492,808 265,290 3,758,098
2032 490,008 6,423 496,43 lﬁi\:’%

Totals  § 12,927,286 $ 2429478 §$ 15,35,62;»2%:;’% 7

b

Proprietary fund indebtedness represented by revenue bonds totale“:“$}%}2,9‘27,286 on December 31, 2016.
The debt is pledged by the assets and revenues of the utilities. T hﬁéj"’ty" s full faith and credit do not back
these revenue bonds. Transactions for 2016 are summarized as}gﬂ%ws:

Balance - January 1, 2016 $ 13,782,428
' Principal reductions (855,142)
Balance - December 31, 2016 $ 12,927,286

D. Lease purchase agreements

& M aa )
sl

Annual debt service requirements to mz«;iﬁl}ﬁty ‘of lease purchase agreements are as follows:

Year Ended i~ "‘mg\

December 31, > Prindipal Interest Totals
2017 {f‘\v 165,699 $ 31,487 $ 197,186
2018 o~ &J 169,776 27,410 197,186
2019 {:% “ 70,082 23,234 93,316
2020 A 71,997 21,319 93,316
2021 73,964 19,352 93,316

2022 - 2026 401,252 65,328 466,580

2027 - 2029 268,669 11,922 280,591

Totals $ 1,221,439 § 200,052 § 1,421,491

Lease purchase agreement balances total $1,221,438 on December 31, 2016. The debt is pledged by the
assets acquired, the city’s full faith and credit do not back the agreements. Transactions for 2016 are
summarized as follows:

Balance - January 1, 2016 $ 1,382,626
Principal reductions (161,188)
Balance - December 31, 2016 $ 1,221,438
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Note 4 - Detailed Notes on All Funds - Continued

E. Long-Term Obligations - Continued

E. Margin of indebtedness

The Wisconsin Statutes restrict the city’s general obligation debt to 5% of the equalized value of all
property in the city. This amount is compared below with the outstanding debt on December 31, 2016:

Equalized Value - 2016 $ 858,346,500
Margin of Indebtedness: »
5% of Equalized Value $ 42,917,325
Outstanding General Obligation
Debt - December 31, 2016 22,095,000
Margin of Indebtedness $ 20,822,325
F. Industrial development revenue bonds ?{%}

The city issued industrial development revenue bonds during 1998 and 209,8'/ for the benefit of private
entities. The bonds outstanding as of December 31, 2016 totaled $1, 85&5 000 and $2,257,500 for the 1998
and 2008 bonds, respectively. The city has no liability for repayrneng o;f these bonds and, consequently,
they are not included in the financial statements. S

Note 5 - Other Information

A. Risk Management PN

The city has purchased commercial insurance; Jﬁ]%iés for various risks of loss related to litigation, theft,
damage or destruction of assets, errors or omissipns, injuries to employees, or acts of God. Payments of
premiums for these policies are recorded as-expenditures or expenses in the various funds of the city.

The city is also exposed to various ri l,‘s{o " loss related to medical claims. The city’s risk management fund
(an internal service fund) is used to’»acg?)unt for and finance its uninsured health risks of loss. Under this
program the risk managemem,; d srovides coverage for up to a maximum of $25,000 for each

individual’s total claims Wltﬁ‘ p claims limited to 125% of expected claims. The city purchases
commercial insurance fox; hegl ‘claims in excess of coverage provided by the fund. Settled claims have
not exceeded this comg% reial insurance coverage since inception of the fund.

%
All funds of the city participate in the health program and are charged amounts needed to pay prior and
current year claims and to establish a reserve for future insurance costs. That reserve had a deficit balance
of $118,758 at December 31, 2016 and is reported as the internal service fund net position. The deficit
balance is expected to be eliminated by future year interdepartmental charges. The accounts payable of
$88,945 reported in the fund at December 31, 2016 is based on the amount of the loss that can be
reasonably estimated at year end. Changes in the fund’s reported liability amount for the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015 follows:

Beginning End of -
Of Year Incurred Claim Year
Year Liability Claims Payments Liability
2016 $ 98,778 § 1,692,207 $§ 1,702,040 $ 88,945
2015 84,143 1,374,233 1,359,598 98,778

40



Note 5 - Other Information - Continued

B. Compensated Absences

City employees earn vacation time in varying amounts and it must generally be taken by the employee’s
anniversary date according to city policy. Vested or accumulated vacation leave that is expected to be
liquidated with expendable available financial resources is reported as an expenditure and a fund liability of
the governmental fund that will pay it. Amounts of vested or accumulated vacation leave that are not
expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources are reported in the statement of net
position.

Management has determined that there was no accumulated vacation time and sick leave at year end to be
liquidated with expendable available resources. The amount of accumulated vacation time at December 31,
2016 that has been recorded in the governmental activities of the statement of net position is $142,637.

Employees may accumulate sick leave to a maximum number of days ranging from 150 to 252. It is the
city’s policy to pay for unused sick leave upon retirement or death at a rate of*$25 per day or apply it to
future retiree health insurance premiums at a rate of $50 per day. Eligible % %ﬁ arhulated sick days of
employees totaled approximately 3,355 at December 31, 2016. The city etermmed its liability for

- accumulated sick pay benefits payable based on the option of applymg $507] per day toward health insurance
premiums. At December 31, 2016, estimated sick leave terminati n;;l?egleﬁts of $161,716 have been

recorded in the governmental activities of the statement of net position.

Accumulated vacation and sick pay benefits for employee§ %fxthe city’s proprietary funds are recorded as a
liability directly in those funds as they are earned by ¢ the employees An additional $42,994 and $38,646 of
accumulated vacation and sick pay, respectively, has% ech recorded as a liability in the proprietary funds.

O
C. WRS Pension Plan S Q
"&ﬁ
Plan description. The WRS is a cost- shanng multlple -employer defined benefit pension plan. WRS
benefits and other plan provisions are estabhshed by Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes. Benefit terms
may only be modified by the leglslaﬁr;re The retirement system is administered by the Wisconsin
Department of Employee Trust Fﬁn%ls (ETF). The system provides coverage to all eligible State of
Wisconsin, local governmen\and other public employees. All employees, initially employed by a
participating WRS em e n or after July 1, 2011, and expected to work at least 1200 hours a year (880
hours for teachers and:sehdol district educational support employees) and expected to be employed for at
least one year from emp oyee’s date of hire are eligible to participate in the WRS.

ETF issues a standalone Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR), which can be found at
http://etf.wi.gov/publications/cafr.htm.

Vesting. For employees beginning participation on or after January 1, 1990, and no longer actively

- employed on or after April 24, 1998, creditable service in each of five years is required for eligibility for a
retirement annuity. Participants employed prior to 1990 and on or after April 24, 1998, and prior to July 1,
2011, are immediately vested. Participants who initially became WRS eligible on or after July 1, 2011,
must have five years of creditable service to be vested.

Benefits provided. Employees who retire at or after age 65 (54 for protective occupation employees, 62 for
elected officials and State executive participants) are entitled to receive an unreduced retirement benefit.
The factors influencing the benefit are: (1) final average earnings, (2) years of creditable service, and (3) a
formula factor.
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Note 5 - Other Information - Continued
C. WRS Pension - Continued

Final average earnings is the average of the participant's three highest years' earnings. Creditable service is
the creditable current and prior service expressed in years or decimal equivalents of partial years for which
a participant receives earnings and makes contributions as required. The formula factor is a standard
percentage based on employment category.

Employees may retire at age 55 (50 for protective occupation employees) and receive reduced benefits.
Employees terminating covered employment before becoming eligible for a retirement benefit may
withdraw their contributions and forfeit all rights to any subsequent benefits.

The WRS also provides death and disability benefits for employees.

Post-Retirement Adjustments. The Employee Trust Funds Board may periodically adjust annuity payments
from the retirement system based on annual investment performance in accordance with s. 40.27, Wis. Stat.
An increase (or decrease) in annuity payments may result when investment gai{a%losses), together with
other actuarial experience factors, create a surplus (shortfall) in the reserves, ??é-s“;;determined by the system’s
consulting actuary. Annuity increases are not based on cost of living orj@t;l%ffsimilar factors. For Core
annuities, decreases may be applied only to previously granted increases. By law, Core annuities cannot be
reduced to an amount below the original, guaranteed amount (the “fledr”) set at retirement. The Core and
Variable annuity adjustments granted during recent years are a%xt;%g}clgws‘:

Year " Core Fund %4% “Variable Fund
Adjustment  {1).” Adjustment
2006 0.8 45,1 3
2007 3.0 I 10
2008 G6™ 0, 0
2009 (2°1)/ (42)
2010 (0.3) 22
2011 Zr (1.2) 11
2012 |, N (7.0) , (7)
2013 (9.6) 9
20045 4.7 25
2015° 2.9 2
4

o,
Contributions. Requﬁ€d9 contributions are determined by an annual actuarial valuation in accordance with
Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes. The employee required contribution is one-half of the actuarially
determined contribution rate for general category employees, including teachers, and Executives and
Elected Officials. Required contributions for protective employees are the same rate as general employees.
Employers are required to contribute the remainder of the actuarially determined contribution rate. The
employer may not pay the employee required contribution unless provided for by an existing collective
bargaining agreement.

During the reporting period, the WRS recognized $346,167 in contributions from the employer.

Contribution rates as of December 31, 2016 are:

Employee Category Employee | Employer
General (including teachers) 6.6% 6.6%
Executives & Elected Officials 6.6% 6.6%
Protective with Social Security 6.6% 9.49%
Protective without Social Security 6.6% 13.29%
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Note S - Other Information - Continued

C. WRS Pension - Continued

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

At December 31, 2016, the City of Burlington reported a lability of $605,052 for its proportionate share of
the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2015, and the total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
December 31, 2014 rolled forward to December 31, 2015. No material changes in assumptions or benefit
terms occurred between the actuarial valuation date and the measurement date. The City of Burlington’s
proportion of the net pension liability (asset) was based on the City of Burlington’s share of contributions
to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all participating employers. At December 31, 2015, the
City of Burlington’s proportion was 0.03723434%, which was a decrease of 0.00086191% from its
proportion measured as of December 31, 2014.

For the year ended December 31, 2016, the City of Burlington recognize_gi %%n expense of $734,417.

At December 31, 2016, the City of Burlington reported deferred outﬂ WS of resources and deferred inflows

of resources related to pensions from the following sources: R
S
Deferred Deferred Inflows
Outflows of of Resources
Resources
Differences between expected and *ﬂ{\ L $102,357 $(1,273,319)
actual experience - ‘
\i b
Changes in assumptlons \f‘\;“} $423,320 $0
«(;%
Net differences bef:vyéén projected $2,477,251 $0
and actual earni g on pension plan
investm nts%g
foR
Changes‘in proportion and $19,686 $0

differences between employer
contributions and proportionate
share of contributions

Employer contributions subsequent $349,886 $0
to the measurement date

Total $3,372,500 $(1,273,319)
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Note 5 - Other Information -~ Continued

C. WRS Pension Plan - Continued

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions - Continued

$349,886 reported as deferred outflows related to pension resulting from the City of Burlington’s
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension
liability (asset) in the year ended December 31, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension will be recognized in pension expense as

follows:
Year ended Deferred Outflow of | Deferred Inflows of
August 31: Resources Resources
2016 $784,618 $(308,146)
2017 $784,618 $(308;146)
2018 $784,619 $(308;145)
2019 $654,692 $(308,145)
Thereafter $14,067 xmé\ $(40,737)
. M,
x. LY
Actuarial assumptzons The total pension liability in the Deégr”ﬂber 31, 2015, actuarial valuation was

determined using the following actuarial assumptions, ap% I ed to all periods included in the measurement:

%Deeember 31,2014

Seniority/Merit .2
O™

Actuarial Valuation Date:
Measurement Date of Net Pension Liability ,;g; {;Becember 31,2015
(Asset) s{f m}%
Actuarial Cost Method: » ¥ | Entry Age
Asset Valuation Method: S Fair Market Value
Long-Term Expected Rate of Retig>’ 7.2%
Discount Rate: M"??% 7 7.2%
Salary Increases: e
Inflation | \’;‘}?‘* 3.2%
& 0.2% - 5.6%

Mortality: ™

Wisconsin 2012 Mortality Table

Post-retirement Adjustments*

2.1%

* No post-retivement adjustment is guaranteed. Actual adjustments are based on recognized investment return, actuarial experience and other
Sfactors. 2.1% is the assumed annual adjustment based on the investment return assumption and the post-retirement discount rate.

Actuarial assumptions are based upon an experience study conducted in 2012 using experience from 2009 -
2011. The total pension liability for December 31, 2015 is based upon a roll-forward of the liability
calculated from the December 31, 2014 actuarial valuation.
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C. WRS Pension Plan - Continued

Long-term expected Return on Plan Assets. The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected
future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of
return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by
adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each
major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Betirement Funds
Asset Allocation Targets and Expected
Returns
As of December 31, 2015
Current
Asset Destination Long-Term Long-Term
Allocation Target Asset Esxpected Nominal Expected Real
Cors Fund Asset Class %%  Allocation % Rate of Return % Rate of Return %
U.5. Equities 27 Ya 23 % 7.6 Yo 4.7 Yo
Internationsl Equities 245 22 g5 58
Fized Income 275 7 44 1.6
Inflation Sensitive Assets 10 20 432 14
Real Estate 7 7 8.5 36
Private Equity/Debt 7 7 9.4 6.5
Multi-Asset 4 4 6.7 3R
Total Core Fund 107 % 120 k) 74 Yo 45 %
Wariable Fund Asset Class
17.5. Equities 70 % 70 Yo 76 %o 4.7 %
International Equities 30 30 85 5.6
Total Variable Fund 100 % 100 % 7.9 % 30 Y%
New England Pension Consultants Long Term US CPI (Inflstion) Forecast: 2.75%
Asset Allocations are managed within established ranges, farget percentages may differ from actual monthly
allocations

Single Discount rate. A single discount rate of 7.20% was used to measure the total pension liability. This
single discount rate was based on the expected rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.20% and a
long term bond rate of 3.56%. Because of the unique structure of WRS, the 7.20% expected rate of return
implies that a dividend of approximately 2.1% will always be paid. For purposes of the single discount rate,
it was assumed that the dividend would always be paid. The projection of cash flows used to determine
this single discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution
rate and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially
determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments (including
expected dividends) of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.
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Note 5 - Other Information - Continued

C. WRS Pension Plan - Continued

Sensitivity of the city’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) to changes in the discount
rate. The following presents the city’s proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) calculated
using the discount rate of 7.20 percent, as well as what the city’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.20
percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.20 percent) than the current rate:

1% Decrease | Current Discount | 1% Increase To

to Discount Rate (7.20%) Discount Rate
‘Rate (6.20%) (8.20%)
Proportionate share of the net $4,243,838 $605,052 ($2,236,907)

pension liability (asset)

Pension plan fiduciary net position. Detailed information about the pension pl£ s fiduciary net position is
available in separately issued financial statements available at http://etf. Qw ;z@’v/vubhcauons/ cafr.htm.

&

Payable to the WRS. At December 31, 2016 the city reported a payang\ of $75,313 for the outstanding
amount of contributions to the pension plan for the year ended %%i%mber 31, 2016.

D. Tax Incremental Financing Districts 4 %% g

The city has established tax incremental financing (’[‘“if“} district no. 3 pursuant to a law enacted to provide a
process by which local units of government could . 1i?*auCe public works or improvements in blighted areas
from taxes levied by county, city, schools and,other, tgcal jurisdictions based on the increase in property
values within a designated geographic area. \%"hen a tax incremental district is established, the state
determines the aggregate value of taxable pn})perty located within the district (the base value). Taxes

- derived from levies by all local jurisdic épl ohs on property values exceeding the base value determined by the
state are allocated to the city for ﬁna"l*laf g improvements within the district.

During November 2014, the ¢ ,ifadopted a resolution amending Tax Incremental District No. 3 to allow for
the sharing of revenues with- éx cremental E.R. District No. 1 for a five year period as provided for in
section 66.1105(6) of the Lsi’:onsm statutes. Positive tax increments in excess of District No. 3’s (the
donor) project costs ar%f \Be allocated to E. R. District No. 1 (the recipient) beginning in 2016.

Summary information on TIF district no. 3 follows:

Date of creation 9/29/1992
End of statutory construction period 9/29/2014
Maximum statutory life of district 9/29/2019
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Note 5 - Other Information - Continued

D. Tax Incremental Financing Districts - Continued

The following summarizes the transactions to date of TIF district no. 3.

From
Year Date of

Ended Creation
Accumulated project expenditures
(including interest costs) $§ 223,063 $61,107,523
Project Revenues
Tax increments received 3,943,300 52,070,354
Intergovernmental revenues 17,743 748,033
Special assessments/property sales _ --- 231,751
Rental income -, 2,794
Investment income ( ,Q?i > 2,310,454
City contribution for Wehmhoff Park . V\' 60,000
Increment allocations from TIF district no. 4 g 2,009,000
Premium on bonds issued %\% Tea- 69,151
All other . . {;\:;\ | R 3,000
Total project revenues N :? 3,970,944 57,504,537
Net Costs Recoverable (Recovered) . f?} ” $(3,747,881) $ 3,602,986

The recovery of the above costs is subject to sufﬁoi‘é“%crements being generated in the district before the

end of its life. The above costs have been prirfiatily financed by the issuance of general obligation and
lease revenue bonds and notes. /

The city created an environmental rem %%tmn tax incremental financing district in 2009 pursuant to the
Wisconsin Statutes. The following surgx%ﬂzes the transactions to date of the environmental remediation
tax incremental financing districtv ‘ ﬁ"%

> From
Nt:\ Year Date of
, ﬂ@ Ended Creation
Accumulated projeét expenditures
(including interest costs) $ 50,861 $ 5,304,313
Project Revenues
Tax increments received 39,831 232,326
Intergovernmental revenues 62 332,276
Interest earned on note receivable : 51,202 455,592
Loan repayments , 44918 172,049
Total project revenues 136,013 1,192,243
Net Costs Recoverable (Recovered) $ (85152) $ 4,112,070
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Note S - Other Information - Continued
D. Tax Incremental Financing Districts - Continued

The tax incremental financing district no. 5 was created under the provisions of Wisconsin Statute Section
66.1105 as a “Mixed Use District”. The purpose of that section is to allow a municipality to recover
development and improvement costs in a designated area that the property taxes generated on the increased
value of property after the creation date of the district. That tax on the increased value is referred to as a
tax increment.

Summary information on TIF district no. 5 follows:

Last Date to Final
Creation Date Incur Project Costs Dissolution Date
December 2, 2014 October 1, 2016 October 1, 2022

The following summarizes the transactions to date of TIF district no. 5.

o From
%Yf%w Date of
o %En’cféd Creation

Accumulated project expenditures

(including interest costs) $ 311,868 $ 5,077,896

Project Revenues

Developer reimbursements --- 113,622
Investment income 1,082 3,545
Total project revenues 1,082 117,167
Net Costs Recoverable o $ 310,786 $ 4,960,729

RS
2

In the opinion of management an%e city’s legal counsel, the city is involved in no claims or lawsuits that
would have a material effect m% e financial statements in the event of an unfavorable outcome.

E. Litigation and Contmgencle“a

F. Subsequent E@{;{f“s
Management has evaluated the need for disclosure or recording of transactions resulting from subsequent
events through June 28, 2016, the date the financial statements were available to be issued; and concluded

the following matter required disclosure:

Disclose Flood Info

48



G. Housing Authority Component Unit

The Housing Authority of the City of Burlington is a component unit of the city. The fiscal year end of the

housing authority is August 31, 2016. The following is a summary of significant disclosures of the housing
authority.

1. Summary of significant accounting policies
The housing authority was formed under the applicable sections of the Wisconsin Statutes to
provide an economically designed and constructed low-rent housing facility for senior citizens in
the City of Burlington. The housing authority is governed by a five-member board of
commissioners appointed by the city’s mayor.

The housing authority uses the accrual basis of accounting.

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is provided on the straight line method over
the estimated useful lives of the assets.

2. Cash and investments oy
The housing authority’s cash and investments consist of deposits atglogca};banks At August 31,
2016, the housing authority’s deposits totaled $354,777. The carr mgvalue of those deposits on

the housing authority’s financial statements was $345,511. All oft ithe housing authority’s deposits
at August 31, 2016 were covered by FDIC insurance. %m%

3. Restricted cash K” /
The housing authority is required to maintain separg '%a\gestrlcted accounts for debt service, security

deposits, and capital improvements and replace»me > Restricted cash at August 31, 2016 consisted
of the following: ,

Reserve account $ 237,189
Security deposits 34,028
Totals $ 271,217
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Note 5 - Other Information - Continued
G. Housing Authority - Continued

4. Long-term debt
The Housing Authority’s long-term debt as of August 31, 2016 consisted of the following:

1977 USDA Rural Development loan. This loan was

reamortized on July 1, 2014 at a stated interest rate of

3.625%, however, a Rural Development interest subsidy reduces

the rate paid to 1%. The loan has been deferred for 20 years and

will be due for refinancing on July 1, 2034. $ 426,546

1984 USDA Rural Development loan. This loan was
reamortized on July 1, 2014 at a stated interest rate of
3.625%, however, a Rural Development interest subsidy reduces

the rate paid to 1%. The loan has been deferred for 20 years and A0

will be due for refinancing on July 1, 2034, 13%{}06

2014 USDA Rural Development loan. This loan was & y} |

was authorized on July 10, 2014 for $1,475,978 with principal %\3}

payments to commence in September 2015. Interest in not %

charged on the loan. Monthly principal payments %:;’wf

for the loan will be $2,464 based on a 50 year amortizationj;‘sg}w 1,446,409

Total notes payable *{ 2,210,161

Add: net pension liability {, 5,371

Less: current maturities {Z&’ (29,568)
Total long-term debt \ ,j $ 2,185,964

Interest payments of the scheduled pay: .’éfﬁts“below are reported at the subsidized rate of 1%.

Annual principal and interest paymeﬁ‘%\to maturity are as follows:

(‘% ~ Principal Interest Total
: %9197’% $§ 29568 $ --- $ 29568
018 29,568 --- 29,568
Q 019 29,568 29,568
2020 29,568 --- 29,568
2021 29,568 --- 29,568
2022 - 2026 147,840 --- 147,840
2027 - 2031 | 147,840 --- 147,840
2032 - 2036 * 911,592 148,325 1,059,917
2037 - 2041 147,840 --- 147,840
2042 - 2046 147,840 --- 147,840
2047 - 2051 147,840 --- 147,840
2052 - 2056 147,840 --- 147,840
2057 - 2061 147,840 --- 147,840
2062 - 2065 115,849 --- 115,849

Total notes payable - August 31,2016 $ 2.210,161 $ 148,325 2,358,486

* - The 1977 and 1984 USDA Rural Development loans are due for refinancing on July 1, 2034
including accrued interest of $148,325.
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Schedules of Required Supplementary Information

SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET)
Wisconsin Retirement System

2015
Proportion of the net pension asset (liability) (0.03723434)%
Proportionate share of the net pension asset (liability) $(605,052)
Covered-employee payroll $4,234,746
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 98.2%
pension liability (asset) ‘
2014
Proportion of the net pension asset 0.03809625%
Proportionate share of the net pension asset L m35935,748
Covered-employee payroll s 2 284,351,295
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total 3}*‘ 7 102.74%
pension asset (‘L

*The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the calendar year- -end® that accurred within the fiscal year

SCHEDULE OF CONT&IB ITIONS
Wisconsin Retirem&nt, System

N
N ;ﬁ\» ) 2015
Contractually required contributions $346,167
Contributions in relation to the,éontractually required $346,167
contributions A
Contribution deficiency (excess) $0
Covered-employeeayroll $4,234,746
Contributions s“é“fércentage of covered-employee 8.17%
payroll {é‘“
G

< 2014
Cofﬁ:;actually required contributions $369,564
Contributions in relation to the contractually required $369,564
contributions
Contribution deficiency (excess) $0
Covered-employee payroll $4,351,295
Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee 8.49%
payroll

Notes to Required Supplementary Information
for the Year Ended December 31, 2016

Changes of benefit terms. There were no changes of benefit terms for any participating employer in WRS.

Changes of assumptions. There were no changes in the assumptions.
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A two-page combining balance
sheet follows.



Assets

Cash and investments
Taxes receivable
Prepaid expenditures
Notes receivable

Total Assets

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balances
Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Due to other funds

Advances from other funds
Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Deferred revenue

Fund Balances
Permanent
Assigned
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and
Fund Balances

CITY OF BURLINGTON
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2016

Special Revenue Funds
Community
Development TIF No. 3 Park
Library Block Revolving Develop- Library Police
Operations Grant Loan ment Trust Donations Wehmhoff
$ 129,774 $ 75,512 $ - $ 134,381 $ 106,972 $ 20281 $ 54,774
405,500 - - - - - -
- - - 1,264 - - .
- 667,698 198,492 - - - -
535,274 743,210 198,492 135,645 106,972 20,281 54,774
17,180 ; - -y ; ;
17,180 - - Ay - - -
N
405,500 667,698 198 492A\ - - - -
Y @ 7
X& - - . 50,000
112,594 75,512 {(\} 135,645 106,972 20,281 4,774
112,594 75,512 b”’},’“-% - 135,645 106,972 20,281 54,774
$ 535274 § k\.ﬁ7ﬁ3 ;}‘0 § 198,492  § 135645 § 106,972 $§ 20,281 $ 54,774

'{0{; e>

@

Q
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Capital Projects Funds

General
Debt Revolving Total
Service Capital Storm Water ~ Swimming Facade Nonmajor
Fund Projects Infrastructure  Management Pool Grants Funds
$ - $1,567,177 $ 393946 § 32234 § - $ - $ 2,515,051
406,157 - - - - - 811,657
- 8,420 - - - - 9,684
- - - - - - 866,190
406,157 1,575,597 393,946 32,234 - - 4,202,582
, %(:%
L
- 13,843 7,038 32,234 - - { 70,295
- - - - 61,915 5,844 > 167,759
; ; 1,424.252 : ; - A 14425
- 13,843 1,431,290 32,234 61,915 5,844.™, 1,562,306
k\\;‘;ak;% ‘
406,157 - ; - 1,677,847
. . - - - 50,000
- 1,561,754 (1,037,344) - (5,844) 912,429
- 1,561,754 (1,037,344) - 2 (61915) (5,844) 962,429
§ 406157 $1575597 $ 393946 § 32294 ™\s - s - $ 4,202,582
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A two-page combining statement of
revenues, expenditures and changes
in fund balances follows.




Revenues

Taxes

Intergovernmental

Charges for services

Investment income

Repayment of note receivable principal
All other

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Public safety

Public works
Culture, recreation & education
Conservation and development
Capital outlay
Debt service:

Principal

Interest

Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers in
Transfers out
Sale of capital assets

Total Other Financing Sources
Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

AR

CITY BURLINGTON
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2016

Special Revenue Funds
Community
Development  TIF No. 3 Park
Library Block Revolving Develop- Library Police

Operations Grant Loan ment Trust Donations ~ Wehmhoff

$ 405,500 S - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -

283,246 - - 10 - - -

20,733 - - - - - -
648 6,385 2,471 - 417 - 4,277

- 19,126 11,438 - - - -

23,842 - - 86,519 14,918 12,874 -
733,969 25,511 13,909 86,529 15,335 12,874 4,277

- - 4,143 -

677,910 - - -

- 4,028 - -

677,910 4,028 {x‘& %f701 2,250 33,604 4,143 -
56,059 @£ 2 ‘483 (37,792) 84,279 (18,269) 8,731 4,277

S
f {%%} - 158,914 25,000 - - -
g% ; (29,295) ] ; - ;
af"‘@*} w

- 129,619 25,000 - - -
x 56,059 21,483 91,827 109,279 (18,269) 8,731. 4,277
56,535 54,029 (91,827) 26,366 125,241 11,550 50,497
$ 112594 § 75512 § - $ 135,645 $ 106972 § 20281 $ 54,774
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Capital Projects Funds

General
Debt Revolving Total
Service Capital Storm Water ~ Swimming Facade Nonmajor
Fund Projects Infrastructure  Management Pool Grants Funds
$ 406,157 $ 400,000 § - $ - $ - $ - $ 1,211,657
- - - - - - 283,256
- - - - - - 20,733
697 7,656 36,254 - - 86 58,891
R - - - - - 30,564
. } - - 4,000 - 142,153
406,854 407,656 36,254 - 4,000 86 1,747,254
] ] . ; . ; ?}gn%
- - 10,991 - - - 10,991
- - - - - - 711 1,514
- - - 117,123 16,975, ) %\j 189,827
- 330,657 - - 65 915 {} 398,822
317,787 - - - %ﬁ%\ B 317,787
212,649 - - - N 212,649
530,436 330,657 10,991 117,123 65,9(_‘1;5,;,\ ) L 16,975 1,845,733
(123,582) 76,999 25,263 (117,123) d ﬁ\(éil 915) (16,889) (98,479)
123,582 - - - 20,000 455,322
- - R - - (29,295)
- 2,850 - 8 - - 2,850
D
123,582 2,850 - ,fii% 127,826 - 20,000 428,877
- 79,849 KZG 10,703 (61,915) 3,111 330,398
{ %/
- 1,481,905 (:j:? ,607) (10,703) - (8,955) 632,031
$ - $1,561,754  § (1 ,037,344) § - $ (61915) $ (5844 § 962,429
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CITY OF BURLINGTON
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2016

Original Variance
and Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Taxes
General property taxes $ 4,820,140  $ 4,817,528 § (2,612)
Payments in lieu of taxes 35,000 34,232 (768)
Room tax 105,000 120,888 15,888
Interest on personal property taxes 150 263 113
Total Taxes - ' 4,960,290 4,972,911 12,621
Intergovernmental ™
Shared taxes from state 671,003 & 2%17 3,614
Exempt computer aid 17,534 ¢ 134,530 16,996
Fire insurance from state 36,000 | 3/’” 36,215 215
Municipal services 1 7%7% 1,775 (12)
General transportation aid 602 ~93§’> 602,638 (295)
Connecting streets N 2 832 2,803 29
Recycling grants QA %\24 OOO 28,643 4,643
Clean sweep grant (/" 13,000 18,765 5,765
State aid for police training - 3,958 3,958
Safety aid gf g}» 2,500 . (2,500)
Forestry grant “‘i} - 25,383 25,383
DNR aid in lieu of tax 681 668 (13)
Total Intergovernmental \S 1,372,270 1,429,995 57,725
N {5
Licenses and Permits
Business and occupatlon q}enses 36,380 36,852 472
Weights and measures 7,400 7,040 (360)
Wisconsin cable, T %{ enses 135,000 131,538 (3,462)
Parking perm1§3 700 200 (500)
Cell tower permi 57,000 56,851 (149)
Building and electrical permits 135,000 257,498 122,498
Right of way and zoning permits 11,000 9,020 (1,980)
Total Licenses and Permits 382,480 498,999 116,519
Fines and Forfeitures
Court penalty costs 135,000 128,059 (6,941)
Parking violations 60,000 53,142 (6,858)
Total Fines and Forfeitures $ 195,000 $ 181,201 $ (13,799)
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CITY OF BURLINGTON
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Original Variance
and Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
Charges for Services
Clerk's revenue $ 6,000 § 8,047 $ 2,047
Police department : 5,500 14,057 8,557
Fire department 12,500 38,990 26,490
Street department 10,000 7,224 (2,776)
Zoning and developer fees 50,000 26,227 (23,773)
Parks fees 17,000 7,838 (9,162)
Total Charges for Services 101,000 b105"‘3\83 1,383
Special Assessments 3 %
Sidewalks and all other 25, 000 X v 33,745 8,745
Interest ‘
Investment earnings 10;‘ OO (2,911) (12,911)
Interest on special assessments { * 2,500 954 (1,546)
; ?& -%:Lé‘
Total interest ,ﬁ%}&? 12,500 (1,957) (14,457)
R
Other ‘%’% 3%’
Lease of city property A P 16,000 - (16,000)
Insurance recoveries v (:”‘3 10,000 17,980 7,980
Police donations AN - 516 516
All other 3O 2,600 2,712 112
S
Total Other %\‘!; 28,600 21,208 (7,392)
Total Revenues, $ 7,238,485 $ 161,345

(x $ 7,077,140
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CITY OF BURLINGTON
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Original Variance
and Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
General Government
Mayor and city council $ 108,650 $§ 98,263 $ 10,387
Municipal court 58,911 77,334 (18,423)
Administration 335,002 376,070 (41,068)
Finance - treasurer 198,894 194,892 4,002
City clerk 52,861 47,298 5,563
Elections 37,400 33,751 3,649
Assessor and board of review 50,700 49 1 18 1,582
City attorney 95,000 k)15 3749 (56,749)
“n =
Total General Government 937,418 ﬁ 1, (;‘28 475 (91,057)
Public Safety Z§":}\
Police department 2,790,059 2,749,767 40,292
Fire department he 746%49 725,570 21,279
Building inspector ﬁ";itsz 278 117,574 14,704
Total Public Safety g? 3 669,186 3,592,911 76,275
Public Works (
Street administration and maintenance \ k4 1,123,343 1,064,645 58,698
Street lighting »QZ““@ 260,000 268,744 (8,744)
Sidewalks, curb and gutters %y 33,000 50,288 (17,288)
Storm sewers A 6,500 2,682 3,818
Parking structure \” 11,500 22,409 (10,909)
Garbage collection \;“% ' 363,272 375,284 (12,012)
Recycling QJ 103,360 102,920 440
Landfill Q}& 25,000 29,988 (4,988)
Clean sweep 22,000 25,997 (3,997)
Total Public Works 1,947,975 1,942,957 5,018
Health and Human Services
Health officer 74,617 74,617 -
Cemetery - 8 8)
Animal shelter 6,300 9,582 (3,282)
Total Health and Human Services $ 80917 § 84,207 $  (3,290)
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CITY OF BURLINGTON

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Culture, Recreation and Education
Historical society
Senior citizens
Celebrations and festivals
Parks and forestry

Total Culture, Recreation and Education

Conservation and Development
Economic development

Plan commission
Town annexation revenue sharing

Total Conservation and Development

Total Expenditures

61

Original Variance
and Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ -
2,500 2,517 a7
- 12,200 (12,200)
671,717 530,924 140,793
675,217 546,641 128,576
B 7
A
75,000 2};1{1‘6,306 (71,306)
88,300 1 4 7 56,470 31,830
32,960 \X 722,367 10,593
%%hbj“k,
19@}239 ' 225,143 (28,883)
)
$ 86,639




The following is a summary of the bonds and notes payable of the city as of December 31, 2016.

General Obligation Debt

2007 refunding bonds
2011 refunding bonds

2012 street bonds

2012 refunding bonds
2014A refunding bonds
2015A refunding bonds
2015B promissory notes
2015 Fox River Bank loan

CITY OF BURLINGTON

2007 General Obligation Refunding Bonds

April 1,2017
October 1, 2017
April 1,2018

- October 1, 2018
April 1, 2019
October 1, 2019
April 1, 2020
October 1, 2020
April 1, 2021
October 1, 2021
April 1, 2022

October 1,2022¢") N

April 1,2023
October 1, 2023
April 1, 2024
October 1, 2024
April 1, 2025
October 1, 2025
April 1, 2026
October 1, 2026
April 1,2027

Y

P

LONG-TERM DEBT SCHEDULES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2016

Outstanding
Original Principal

Principal 12/31/2016
$ 1,500,000 $ 1,500,000
9,120,000 3,960,000
3,155,000 3,055,000
1,460,000 710,000
6,200,000 5,255,000
4,215,000 2,815,000
4,500,000 4,500,000
300,000 .300;000

$ 22,095,000

v
The proceeds from this issue were used to refund a short-term note and to ﬁnanc"e;vanous
infrastructure improvements. Interest is charged at rates of 4.10% to 4. 37%

Pnpglpal Interest Total
% 100,000 $ 31,988  $ 131,988
12} - - 29,800 29,800
nf;\ 110,000 29,800 139,800
‘ - 27,545 27,545
120,000 27,545 147,545
- 25,055 25,055
130,000 25,055 155,055
- 22,325 22,325
140,000 22,325 162,325
- 19,350 19,350
150,000 19,350 169,350
- 16,162 16,162
150,000 16,162 166,162
- 12,975 12,975
150,000 12,975 162,975
- 9,750 9,750
150,000 9,750 159,750
- 6,525 6,525
150,000 6,525 156,525
- 3,262 3,262
150,000 3,262 153,262
$ 1,500,000 $ 377,486  $ 1,877,486
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CITY OF BURLINGTON
LONG-TERM DEBT SCHEDULES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

2011 General Obligation Refunding Bonds
The proceeds from this issue were used to refund 2001 bonds issued for TIF No. 3 purposes

Interest is charged at rates of 2.0% to 3.0%.

Principal Interest Total
April 1, 2017 $ 905,000 § 53,657  $ 958,657
October 1, 2017 - 43,475 43,475
April 1, 2018 940,000 43,475 983,475
October 1, 2018 - 31,725 31,725
April 1, 2019 970,000 31,725 1,001,725
October 1, 2019 - 17,175 17,175
April 1, 2020 1,145,000 17,175 1,162,175
$ 3,960,000 $ 238,407 $ 4,198,407

2012 General Obligation Street Bonds

The proceeds from this issue were used to finance various infrastructure 1mprovement§w%

Interest is charged at rates of 2.0% to 2.8%.

: Principal "%\ I’r{‘:erest Total
April 1, 2017 $ 50, 000 37,417 87,417
October 1,2017 “‘ﬁx 36,917 36,917
April 1,2018 500 36,917 86,917
October 1, 2018 { 36,418 36,418
April 1,2019 165 OOO 36,418 201,418
October 1, 2019 34,768 34,768
April 1, 2020 170,000 34,768 204,768
‘October 1, 2020 - 33,067 33,067
April 1, 2021 120,000 33,067 153,067
October 1, 2021 - 31,718 31,718
April 1, 2022 125,000 31,718 156,718
October 1, 2022 8 - 30,311 30,311
April 1, 2023 o I 165,000 30,311 195,311
October 1,2023 NN - 28,455 28,455
April 1, 2024 ' &@ 200,000 28,455 228,455
October 1, 20244 7 * - 26,205 26,205
April 1, 2025 190,000 26,205 216,205
October 1, 2025 - 24,068 24,068
April 1, 2026 195,000 24,068 219,068
October 1, 2026 - 21,776 21,776
April 1, 2027 200,000 21,776 221,776
October 1, 2027 - 19,326 19,326
April 1,2028 205,000 19,326 224,326
October 1, 2028 - 16,713 16,713
April 1, 2029 215,000 16,713 231,713
October 1, 2029 - 13,864 13,864
April 1, 2030 220,000 13,864 233,864
October 1, 2030 - 10,894 10,894
April 1, 2031 385,000 10,894 395,894
October 1, 2031 - 5,600 5,600
April 1, 2032 400,000 5,600 405,600
$ 3,055,000 $ 777,617 3,832,617

63



CITY OF BURLINGTON
LONG-TERM DEBT SCHEDULES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
2012 General Obligation Refunding Bonds
The proceeds from this issue were used to refund state trust fund loans issued in
2004, 2009 and 2011 for various purposes. Interest is charged at rates of 0.5% to 2.5%.

Principal Interest Total

April 1, 2017 $ 145,000 $ 6,307 $ 151,307
October 1, 2017 ' - 5,401 5,401
April 1,2018 150,000 5,401 155,401
October 1, 2018 - 4,276 4,276
April 1, 2019 145,000 4,276 149,276
October 1, 2019 - 2,972 2,972
April 1, 2020 155,000 2,972 157,972
October 1, 2020 - 1,383 1,383
April 1, 2021 55,000 1,383 56,383
October 1, 2021 - %f"’\ZSO 750
Apn'l 1,2022 60,000 E N %\“’ 750 60,750

$ 710,000 $ ¥35871  § 745,871

2014A General Obligation Refunding Bonds (4

The proceeds from this issue were used to refund the 2010A general obllgatlmbha:;%nds The proceeds
from that issue were used to finance capital projects in the TIF No. 3 capital,projects, environmental TIF,
water utility and sewer utility funds. Interest is charged on the new d%I?t atrates of 0.4% to 3.2%.

Prmmpal Interest Total
May 1, 2017 %}% 485,000 $ 58,338 $ 543,338
November 1,2017 x,%;% g - 56,640 56,640
May 1, 2018 bm{‘f;’ 245,000 56,640 301,640
November 1, 2018 "‘i.,%) ‘ - 55,415 _ 55,415
May 1, 2019 ,ﬂ A 245,000 55,415 300,415
November 1,2019 \% = - 53,384 53,884
May 1, 2020 £) 255,000 53,884 308,884
November 1, 2020 \f}“ - 51,971 51,971
May 1, 2021 ;M 340,000 51,971 391,971
November 1, 2021 \;é\ : - 49,081 49,081
May 1, 2022 360,000 49,081 409,081
November 1 202\;2&» - 45,661 45,661
May 1, 2023 370,000 45,661 415,661
November 1, 2023 - 41,776 41,776
May 1, 2024 380,000 41,776 421,776
November 1, 2024 - 37,406 37,406
May 1, 2025 390,000 37,406 427,406
November 1, 2025 - 32,531 32,531
May 1, 2026 410,000 32,531 442,531
November 1, 2026 - 26,996 26,996
May 1, 2027 425,000 26,996 451,996
November 1, 2027 - 20,940 20,940
May 1, 2028 435,000 20,940 455,940
November 1, 2028 - 14,415 14,415
May 1, 2029 450,000 14,415 464,415
- November 1, 2029 - 7,440 7,440
May 1, 2030 465,000 7,440 472,440

$ 5,255,000 $ 1,046,650 $ 6,301,650
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2015A General Obligation Refunding Bonds
The proceeds from this issue were used to refund the 2005 TIF District No. 3 lease revenue bonds.

Interest is charged at rates of 2.0% to 3.0%.

Principal Interest Total
May 1, 2017 $ 1,405,000 $ 28,150 $ 1,433,150
November 1, 2017 - 14,100 14,100
May 1, 2018 1,410,000 14,100 1,424,100
$ 2,815,000 $ 56,350 $ 2,871,350

2015B General Obligation Promissory Notes
. The proceeds from this issue were used to finance infrastructure improvements related tq’ 11% District No. 5.

Interest is charged at rates of 0.7% to 2.25%. N ’3?%
Principal " Interest Total

May 1, 2017 $ 700,000+, m% i 34,914 $ 734,914
November 1, 2017 ,;‘,%\% ‘ 32,463 32,463
May 1, 2018 715,032 32,464 747,464
November 1, 2018 ﬁ?ﬁ’%- ' 28,531 28,531
May 1, 2019 . '735,000 28,531 763,531
November 1, 2019 - 23,386 23,386
May 1, 2020 755,000 23,386 778,386
November 1, 2020 - 16,968 16,968
May 1, 2021 780,000 16,969 796,969
November 1, 2021 - 9,169 9,169
May 1, 2022 N 815,000 9,169 824,169

g\ $ 4,500,000 § 255950 $ 4,755,950

O
2015 Fox River Bank Loan %%;:\
The proceeds from this issue qué%ed to finance infrastructure improvements related to TIF District No. 5.
Interest is charged at rates of 2325% to 3.25%.

Principal Interest Total

May 1, 2017 $ - $ 3,413 $ 3,413
November 1, 2017 - 3,431 3,431
" May 1, 2018 60,000 3,413 63,413
November 1, 2018 - 3,050 3,050
May 1, 2019 60,000 3,033 63,033
‘November 1, 2019 - 2,516 2,516
May 1, 2020 60,000 2,516 62,516
November 1, 2020 _ - 1,830 1,830
May 1, 2021 60,000 1,820 61,820
November 1, 2021 ' - 991 991
May 1, 2022 . 60,000 986 60,986
$ 300,000 8 26,999 $ 326,999
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Outstanding
Original Principal
Other Long-Term Obligations Principal 12/31/2016
2013 vactor lease/purchase - U.S. Bancorp 342,149 141,241
2013 energy conservation program lease purchase - U.S. Bancorp 1,147,507 1,020,588
2014 DPW chipper lease purchase 147,220 59,609
$ 1,221,438

2013 Vactor Lease Purchase

The proceeds from this issue were used to purchase a new sewer vactor truck and chassis. Lease payments

are for 5 years at an interest rate of 2.15%. }Q,@
Principal { wzlﬁfé}rest Total
December 5, 2017 $ 6989 § ¥ 3037 § 72,906
December 5, 2018 71,372 3’»’:&@5 1,535 72,907
' $§  14124L > 'S 4572 8§ 145,813
M\ d
2013 Energy Conservation Program Lease/Purchase 10 N

The proceeds from this issue were used for various energy cor s‘ervatlon facilities improvements. The total

amount of proceeds available is $1,147,507. Lease payment;s

"\

»\ :} Principal Interest

“are for 15 years at an interest rate of 2.698%

Total
February 15, 2017 16434 $ 6,895 § 23.329
May 15, 2017 16,545 6,784 23,329
August 15, 2017 16,657 6,672 23,329
November 15, 2017 \ 16,769 6,560 23,329
 February 15,2018, > 16,883 6,446 23329
May 15, 2018 A 16,997 6,332 23,329
August 15,2018 @ 17,112 6,217 23,329
November 15, 261 “é‘{% 17,228 6,101 23,329
February 15, 2019 17,344 5,985 23,329
May 15, 2019 17,461 5,868 23,329
August 15, 2019 17,579 5,750 23,329
November 15, 2019 17,698 5,631 23,329
February 15, 2020 17,818 5,511 23,329
May 15, 2020 17,938 5,391 23,329
August 15, 2020 18,059 5,270 23,329
November 15, 2020 18,182 5,147 23,329
February 15, 2021 18,305 5,024 23,329
May 15, 2021 18,428 4,901 23,329
August 15, 2021 18,553 4776 23,329
November 15, 2021 : 18,678 4,651 23,329
February 15, 2022 18,804 4525 23,329
Balance carried forward $ 369472 § 120437 8 489,909
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2013 Energy Conservation Program Lease/Purchase - Continued

Principal Interest Total
Balance brought forward $ 369,472 $ 120,437 $ 489,909
May 15, 2022 18,932 4,397 23,329
August 15,2022 19,060 4,269 23,329
November 15, 2022 19,188 4,141 23,329
February 15, 2023 19,318 4,011 23,329
May 15,2023 19,449 3,880 23,329
August 15,2023 19,580 3,749 23,329
November 15, 2023 19,713 3 616 23,329
February 15, 2024 19,846 - ;’x 3 23,329
May 15, 2024 19,980 ‘n & .; 23,329
August 15, 2024 20,115 {} f{’ 3 214 23,329
November 15, 2024 20,251 3,078 23,329
February 15, 2025 20,388 %‘wm‘:"g 2,941 23,329
May 15, 2025 ) 20,526. j} 2,803 23,329
August 15, 2025 20 66 2,664 23,329
November 15, 2025 »“’20 804 2,525 23,329
February 15, 2026 {’\«g‘\ £20 945 2,384 23,329
May 15,2026 g% ¥ 21,086 2,243 23,329
August 15, 2026 21,229 2,100 23,329
November 15, 2026 21,373 1,956 23,329
February 15, 2027 21,517 1,812 23,329
May 15, 2027 21,663 1,666 23,329
August 15, 2027 21,809 1,520 23,329
‘November 15, 2027 21,956 1,373 23,329
February 15, 2028 22,105 1,224 23,329
May 15, 2028 22,254 1,075 23,329
August 15,2028 22,405 924 23,329
November 15, 2@3 ) 22,556 773 23,329
February 15, 2029, 22,709 620 23,329
May 15, 2029 22,862 467 23,329
August 15, 2029 23,017 312 23,329
November 15, 2029 23,815 156 23,971

$ 1,020,588 $ 193,162 $ 1,213,750

2014 DPW Chipper Lease Purchase
The proceeds from this issue were used to purchase a new single axle chipper truck. Lease payments
are for 5 years at an interest rate of 2.581%. ;

Principal Interest Total
October 1, 2017 $ 29425  § 1,538 § 30,963
October 1, 2018 30,184 779 30,963
$ 59,609 § 2317  § 61,926
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Outstanding
Original Principal

Utility Revenue Debt Principal 12/31/2016
2008 sewer revenue bonds - Clean Water Fund (No. 5096-02) $ 4,465,837 $ 2,971,113
2008 sewer revenue bonds - Clean Water Fund (No. 5096-04) 926,948 586,047
2011 water revenue refunding bonds 2,050,000 1,235,000
2012 water revenue bonds - Clean Water Fund (No. 5475-01) ' 2,044,276 1,633,564
2012 sewer revenue bonds - Clean Water Fund (No. 5096-09) 7,439,911 6,501,562

$ 12,927,286

2008 Clean Water Fund Loan (No. 5096-02)
The proceeds from this issue were used for various sewer utility improvements. Interest is
charged at the rate of 2.569%.

-
Principal { 1’%It’l"fﬁbi‘es‘c Total
May 1,2017 $ 214529 $ ¥V 38164 $ 252,693
November 1, 2017 - .,’;:ﬂ 35,408 35,408
May 1,2018 220,040, ) 35,408 255,448
November 1, 2018 N 32,582 32,582
~ May 1,2019 ;2%;693 32,582 258,275
November 1, 2019 LR o 29,683 29,683
May 1, 2020 ;ﬁ% 231,491 29,683 261,174
November 1, 2020 }{; - 26,709 26,709
May 1, 2021 .07 237438 26,709 264,147
November 1, 2021 Y - 23,660 23,660
May 1, 2022 £ 243,538 23,660 267,198
November 1, 2022 - 20,531 20,531
May 1, 2023 249,794 20,531 270,325
November 1, 2023 - 17,323 17,323
May 1, 2024 256,211 17,323 273,534
November 1,2024 .4y - 14,032 14,032
May 1,2025 &) 262,794 14,032 276,826
‘November 1, 2025 - 10,656 10,656
May 1, 2026 269,545 10,656 280,201
November 1, 2026 - 7,193 7,193
May 1, 2027 276,469 7,193 283,662
November 1, 2027 - 3,642 3,642
May 1, 2028 283,571 3,642 287,213

$ 2971113 $ 481,002 $ 3,452,115
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2008 Clean Water Fund Loan (No. 5096-04)

The proceeds from this issue were used for various sewer utility improvements. Interest is
charged at the rate of 2.365%.

Principal Interest Total
May 1, 2017 $ 47,271 6,930 54,201
November 1, 2017 - 6,371 6,371
May 1, 2018 48,389 6,371 54,760
November 1,2018 - 5,799 5,799
May 1, 2019 49,534 5,799 55,333
November 1, 2019 - 5,213 5,213
May 1, 2020 50,705 55,918
November 1, 2020 - 4,614
May 1, 2021 51,904 56,518
November 1, 2021 4,000
May 1, 2022 57,132
November 1, 2022 3,371
May 1, 2023 57,759
November 1, 2023 2,728
May 1, 2024 58,403
November 1, 2024 2,070
May 1, 2025 59,061
November 1, 2025 1,396
May 1, 2026 59,735
November 1, 2026 706
May 1, 2027 60,425
$ 586,047 665,513
2011 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds
The proceeds from this issue Were”:g;;ga to refund the 2002 water revenue bonds that were issued
to finance various water utilsi‘f?,ﬁiinprovements. Interest is charged at rates of 2.0% to 3.5%.
Principal Interest Total
May 1, 2017 $ 190,000.0 19,674.0 209,674.0
November 1, 2017 - 16,823 16,823
May 1, 2018 195,000 16,823 211,823
November 1, 2018 - 13,898 13,898
~May 1, 2019 200,000 13,898 213,898
November 1, 2019 - 10,899 10,899
May 1, 2020 210,000 10,899 220,899
November 1, 2020 - 7,539 7,539
May 1, 2021 215,000 7,539 222,539
November 1, 2021 - 3,938 3,938
May 1, 2022 225,000 3,938 228,938
$ 1,235,000 125,868 1,360,868
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2012 Clean Water Fund Loan (No. 5475-01)
The proceeds from this issue were used for various water utility improvements. Interest is
charged at the rate of 2.2%.

Principal Interest Total
May 1, 2017 93,105 17,969 111,074
.November 1, 2017 - 16,945 16,945
May 1, 2018 95,153 16,945 112,098
November 1, 2018 - 15,898 15,898
May 1, 2019 97,246 15,898 113,144
November 1, 2019 - 14,829 14,829
May 1, 2020 99,386 14,829 114,215
November 1, 2020 - 3535 13,735
May 1, 2021 101,572 , 3,735 115,307
November 1, 2021 - yy” 12 618 12,618
May 1, 2022 103, 807 v ¥ 12,618 116,425
November 1, 2022 i&) 11,476 11,476
May 1, 2023 106,0¢ i} 11,476 117,566
November 1, 2023 %} 10,309 10,309
May 1, 2024 §,%o§,424 10,309 118,733
November 1, 2024 Y £ 9,117 9,117
May 1, 2025 7 1*:3 “ 110,810 9,117 119,927
November 1, 2025 ,};{k -J 7,898 7,898
May 1, 2026 N N 113,248 7,898 121,146
November 1, 2026 . ’ - 6,652 6,652
May 1, 2027 o 115,739 6,652 122,391
November 1, 2027 - 5,379 5,379
May 1, 2028 ‘ 118,285 5,379 123,664
November 1,2028 = #A™ - 4,078 4,078
May 1, 2029 120,888 4,078 124,966
November 1,2029 {7 - 2,748 2,748
May 1, 2030 NN 123,547 2,748 126,295
November 1, 2030 - 1,389 1,389
May 1, 2031 126,264 1,389 127,653

$ 1,633,564 $ 284,111 $ 1,917,675
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2012 Clean Water Fund Loan (No. 5096-09)
The proceeds from this issue were used for various sewer utility improvements. Interest is
charged at the rate of 2.625%.

Principal Interest Total
May 1, 2017 $ 332,204 $ 85,333 $ 417,537
November 1, 2017 - 80,973 80,973
May 1, 2018 340,925 80,973 421,898
November 1, 2018 - 76,498 76,498
May 1, 2019 349,874 76,498 426,372
November 1, 2019 - 71,906 71,906
May 1, 2020 359,058 71,906 430,964
November 1, 2020 - ‘Q’7\L93 67,193
May 1, 2021 368,483 \‘j67 193 435,676
November 1, 2021 - 1}:&’“"62 357 62,357
May 1, 2022 378,156 62,357 440,513
November 1, 2022 ;:{;ég 57,394 57,394
May 1, 2023 388,083, 57,394 445477
November 1, 2023 52,300 52,300
May 1, 2024 §8 270 52,300 450,570
November 1, 2024 %’»{ *f 47,073 47,073
May 1, 2025 - %% ? 408,724 47,073 455,797
November 1, 2025 & 41,709 41,709
May 1, 2026 419,453 41,709 461,162
November 1, 2026 - 36,203 36,203
May 1, 2027 430,464 36,203 466,667
November 1, 2027 - 30,553 30,553
May 1, 2028 441,764 30,553 472,317
November 1, 2028 - 24,755 24,755
- May 1, 2029 453,360 24,755 478,115
November 1, 2029 - 18,805 18,805
May 1, 2030 465,261 18,805 484,066
November 1, 2030§ - 12,698 12,698
May 1, 2031 477,474 12,698 490,172
~ November 1, 2031 - 6,431 6,431
May 1, 2032 490,009 6,431 496,440

L

6,501,562 $ 1,459,029 $ 7,960,591
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